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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9S44 I-800-S52-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.<llilu.«b.tev

October 6, 2022

26

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACHON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Granite United
Way (VC#160015}. Manchester, New Hampshire to continue providing substance use
disorder information and call referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by
increasing the price limitation by $484,999 from $1,623,156 to $2,308,155 and by extending the
completion date from September 29, 2022 to September 29, 2023, effective retroactive to
September 29. 2022 upon Govemor and Council approval 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on Octot}er 31, 2018, item
#17, amended on May 6, 2020, item #36, amended on March 24, 2021, item #17, and most
recently amended on October 13. 2021, item #32.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

0S-9S-92-920S10-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DiV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$186,262 $0 $186,262

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057040

$121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program Svc

92057047
$121,600 $0 $121,600
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2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program Svc

92057048
$317,333 $0 $317,333

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$158,666 $0 $158,666

2022 074-500585
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$357,000 SO $357,000

2023 074-600685
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057048

$119,000 $0 $119,000

2023 074-500589
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057058

$0 $363,749 $363,749

2024 074-500589
Contracts for

Program Svc
92057058

$0 $121,250 $121,250

Subtotaf $1,823,159 $484,999 $2,308,155

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agerwy on September 23. 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract
completion date of September 29. 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal
awarding agency, the Department was unable to present this request to the Governor and Council
prior to the contract expiring.

This request Is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to procure for these services. Any gap in services
could result In delays in accessing care.

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing and increasing substance use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH. ttre telephonic sen/Ice that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
Individuals and their families. The Contractor administers the 2-1-1 NH system, which is the
number advertised throughout NH for individuals or fomlly members to call to connect with the
NH Doorway system for access to $ubstar>ce use services.

Approximately 9.500 individuals will be served September 30. 2022 to September 29,
2023.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking Information about sutwtance use disorder service
access are referred to the Doorways and other resources in their community. During aflerhours
and on weekends, callers are directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with Doorways
services.

The Department vdH continue to monitor services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by fiie Department.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders will not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information and connections to services, which could result in delays In accessing needed care.
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN # H79Tt085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Deparlmtnt ofHealth aiui Human Services'Mistion is to join eommunities and families
i» providing opporinnities for citisena to adiieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax; 603-271-1516 TOO Access: l-SOO-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

October 28,2022

Lori Shibinette, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinette:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way, as described
below and referenced as DoIT No. 2019-053D.

The purpose of this request is to enter into an amendment with Granite United Way to
continue enhancing and increasing substance use disorder information and referral services
through 2-1-1 NH, the telephonic service that provides confidential information about
substance use disorder support services, and referrals for individuals and their families.

The price limitation will increase by $484,999 to $2,308,155, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval throu^ September 29, 2023.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd

DoIT#2019-053D

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31, 2018, (Item #17), and as subsequently amended on May 6, 2020, (Item #36), as amended
on March 24, 2021 (Item #17), and as most recently amended on October 13, 2021 (Item #32), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation, to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$2,308,165

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding subsection 3.4. to read;

3.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded Contractors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve Government Performance and
Results Act (GPRA) data collection.

5. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., to
read:

1. This agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79Ti081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79Ti083326, as
awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79Ti083326 and as
and as awarded on September 23, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Assistance Listing
#93.788, FAIN H79TI085759.

6. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3., to
read;

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line iteiHsas
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-9 Amendment #4 SOR ill Budde^-j--

Granite United Way A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials —

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A04 Page 1 of4 Date 10/^^/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7537AEDD-B6A&4C03-AAeA-170842CFBOA5

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1.. Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.4. to read:

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.7. to read:

5.1.3.1.7. RESERVED

9. Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #4, SOR lil Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-9 Amendment #4 SOR 111 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

^  DS

[ft
Granite United Way A-S-1.3 Contractor initials

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A04 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shaii be effective retroactively to September 29, 2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/26/2022

*OocuSignfd by:

A S.

Date Name^"^^^^"^'^^^
Title: Director

Granite United Way
-OoeuSign«d by:

10/26/2022

Diti Na^r^WmiTFilf^i
Title: President

Granite United Way A-S-1.2

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-AD4 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^-^OoeuSigned by.

10/26/2022

Name:'W«"^anno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by tfie Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite United Way A-S-1.2

SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A04 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-fi Amendment tt4, SOR III Biidget S5-2019-BDAS-04-CALL001-A04

New Hampshire Department of Hea

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

th and Human Services

Granite United Way -211

Call Center (211)

Fy23 - (September 29. 2022 - June 30,2023)

10.00%

Line Item
Program Cost-
Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -

Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

1. Salary & Wages

$210,431 SO $210,431

2. Fringe Benefits $45,699 SO $45,599

3. Consultants $750 so $750

4. Eguipment $1,875 $0 $1,875

S.ial SuDOlies - Educational $0 so $0

S.fbl Suralies • Lab $0 $0 SO

5.(c) SuDOiles-PhafTiiacv $0 $0 $0

5.(d) SuDDlies - Medical SO $0 $0

5.(e) SuDolies Office $1,902 $0 $1,902

6. Travel $1,875 $0 $1,875

7. Software $3,375 $0 $3,375

8. (a) Other- MarKetlno/CoiTHnunications $2,063 $0 $2,063

8. (b) Other- Education and Training $2,063 $0 $2,063

8. (cl Other - Other (please spedfvl

Other: Teleohone $60,000 $0 $60,000

Other (olease specrM SO so SO

Other (olease soeciM $0 $0 SO

Other (olease specify) $0 $0 SO

9. Subcontracts $750 $0 $750

Total Direct Costs $330,681 so $330,681

Total Indirect Costs $33,068 $0 $33,068

TOTAL $363,749 $0 $363,749

Page 1 of 1

Contractor InlU^s

/'f

Date
10/26/2022
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Exhibit B-9 Amendment #4 SOR III Budget SS-2019-BDAS-04-CALL001-A04

New Hampshire Department of Hea

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

Ith and Human Services

Granite United Way -211

Call Center (211)

FY24 - (July 1, 2023 - September 29. 2023)

10.00%

LIrte Kam
Program Cost-

Funded by OHHS

Program Cost-
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

1, Salary & Waoes

$70,143.50 $0 $70,144

2. Fringe Benefits $15,199.50 $0 $15,200

3. Consultants $250.00 $0 $250

4. EgulDment $625.00 so $625

5.(a) SuDdles - Educational $0 SO

5.1b) SuDOlles-LE^ $0 $0

S.fc) SuDOlies - Phaimacv $0 $0

5.ld) Suodies-Medical $0 SO

S.te) SuDOliesOfnce $634.00 $0 $634

6. Travel $625.00 $0 $625

7. Software $1,125.00 $0 $1,125

a (a) Other - Marketino/Communlcalions $687.50 so $688

a. (ti) Other - Education and Ttalnino $687.50 $0 $688

a. (c) Other - Other (olease Mwclfv)
Other (fdease ̂ wcfiy) $20,000.00 so $20,000

Other Mease soedM $0.00 so $0

Other (ploBse specify) $0.00 so $0

Other fofasse soedfyi $0.00 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $250.00 $0 $250

Total Direct Costs $110,227 $0 $110,227

Total Indirect Costs $11,023 so $11,023

TOTAL 1  $121,250 $0 $121,250

Contractor initials.

Ps^1ofl Date
10/26/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretaryof State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE UNITED WAY is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 30, 1927.1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID; 65650

Certified Number: 0005745302

%

lb

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal ofthe State ofNew Hampshire,

this 1 St day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERHFICATE OF AUTOORITY

I, Kathy Blzarro-Thunberg, hereby certify that:

1. i am a duly elected Secretary of the Board of Granite United Way.

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duty called and held on
September 24, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patrick Tufts, President & CEO, is duly authorized on behalf of Granite United Way to enter into
contracts or agreements with ftie State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and furftier is
auftiorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modiftcabons thereto, which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that Uie State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posftion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated

Signature of Elected Cfficer
Name: Kathy Bizarro-Thunberg
Title: Secretary

■1
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ACORD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MU/OO/YVYY)

4/20/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must tK endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCEIi

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03802-0511

name""' Elizabeth Prindiville
(603)224-2562 -.,12

eprindiville@rOWXeya9enCy.com

AFFORDING COVERACS HAIC #

INSURER A Hanover Ins - Bedford

IMSUREO

Granite United Hey

22 Concord Street

Floor 2

Manchester NH 03101

INSURERS

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:22-23 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CeRTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID OJMMS.

IN»R
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODt SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
IMII^niYYVYl

POLICY £XP
LUfTS

A

X COMMERCIAL GEflEAALLUBlUTY

E  1 X 1 OCCUR
m900S3710S lA/2032 1/1/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE s  1,000,000

CLAJMS-MAD
DAMAGE TO RENTED

PRFMISFR %  100,000

^ED EXP (Any one person) %  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s  1,000,000

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMITAPPLIES PER: G ENERM. AGGREGATE s  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 JE^ 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS. COMP/OPAGO {  2,000,000

ProfeeeOnS LMSty i  2,000,000

A

AUTOUOBILE LIABILITY

EBVS0033710S l/l/a022 1/1/2023

COMBNED SINGLE LIMIT

(Ea acddanll
i  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO

TOS

ifLOWNED

TOS

BODILY INJim' (Per frerscr) %

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

sc

Al
BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) %

X HIRED AUTOS X
NC

A|

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pur ac«1«rll

s

s

A

X UMBRELLA LIA0

EXCESS LIA9

OCCUR

CLAIMS-UAOE

cmv9ooa2io-D9 1/1/2022 1/1/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE S  1.000.000

AGGREGATE S  1.000,000

DED ^ RETENTION S 0 s

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS* LIABILITY y f ̂
ANV PROPRlETOR'PARTNER/EXECUTIve 1

OFFlCeRJMEMB6RexCLUDEO'> N
(Mandwory In NH) ' '
1' yes. descriM unda
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

3A SCACee: MB, VT

MHV6996802-09 1/1/2022 1/1/2023

V PER OTN-
■* RTATlflF FR

EL. EACH ACCIDENT S  500.000

E.L. DISEASE -EAEMPLOVEE S  500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S  500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS i LOCATIONS / V6HICUS {ACORO 101, AddHtonal Rtmarta SetwduW, may b« nuchtd K mor« H rM|uir«4I
Covering operations of the named Insured during the policy period.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Dept. of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St.

Concocd, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E Prindiville/ESP

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
1NS025 (20i<0i)

) 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7537AEDD-B6A9^C03-AAEA-170842CFB0AS

United
Way

Granite United Way

LIVE UNITED

MISSION STATEMENT

Granite United Way's mission is to Improve the quality of people's lives by bringing together the caring
power of communities.

Granite United Way
Uiviflddi CDi»ty
t3S(UtliVjin9«!

ConradIII DolOl

SdvJtfc Resian
22 CoKoio Slnet
littwhe9ta.N)| iniSJ
M3.«2}.Sn9

>tart)i3w8iy

UtOltiii. KIISHSl
miwisss

NoitlmlhciM
l6:IUD9n«(

Si»a.MI
SCa.7i2.3H3

dpMrVcler
tllKinlinhIn
HUbrw.m 03784
ioiinwss

CMnl ll«|4r

LmiI). Nil OKSS
WJ,7F.IU;

AlKhlillaii
2!airi|lila»j3ni(
l>«ii<9il1A.MIC32S4
303.338.3)20

Osnoll CnnVVntad
SSSilWKiMbi lll^n
Tamw!iitti.NH 03888
S03J23 9I38
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30,2021
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESS IONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENTAUDTTOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited die accompanying financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise die statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of diese financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; diis includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to die preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of flie
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of tiie entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe tiiat the audit evidence we have obtairwd is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In OUT opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Granite United Way as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

OtherMtttters

Other Informatwn

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by die audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principks, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibilily of management and was derived
from and relates directly to die underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been sul^ected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accoimting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statemente themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material resp>ects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18,2021 on our
consideration of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh
Government Auditing Standards in considering Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging opportunity
grants are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the finandal statements fliemselves, and other additionsil procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 18,2021
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

lYepaid and reimbursable expenses
Investments

Accoimts and rent receivable

Contributions and giants receivable, net
of allowance for imcoUectible contributions

of $400365

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS

Property and equipment, net
Investments - endowment

Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Without With

Donor/Time Donor/Time
Restrictions Restrictions

247,084 $

31,049

444,066

76,730

674319 $

2,902,143

798,929 3,576,162

1,152,668

13,026 247,705

2,171,078

Total

921,103

31,049

444,066

76,730

2,902,143

4,375,091

1,152,668

260,731

2,171,078
Total other assets 1,165,694 2,418,783 3,584,477

Total assets $ 1,964,623 $ 5,994,945 $ 7,959368

LIABFLTTIES AND NETASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITXES

Current maturities of long-term notes payable
Donor-designations payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held for others

$ 14311

322378

687,182

186,263

9,669

$

261,946

$ 14311

584,224

687,182

186,263

9,669
Total current liabilities 1,219,703 261,946 1,481,649

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current maturities 172347 172,347

Total liabilities 1392,050 261,946 1,653,996

COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS:

Without donor/ time restrictions

With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9)
572,573

5,732,999

572373

5,732,999
Total net assets 572,573 5,732,999 6305,572

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,964,623 $ 5,994,945 $ 7,959368

See Notes to Financial Statements. Pages
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Support and revenues:
Campaign revenue:
Traditional contributions pledged
Restricted contributions pledged

Less donor designations
Less provision for uncollectible pledges
Add prior years' excess provision for uncoUectible
pledges taken into income in current year

Net campaign revenue
Support

Grant revenue

Sponsors and program revenue

In-kind contributions

Total support

Odier revenue:

Rental income

Administrative fees

Miscellaneous income

TofflJ support and revenues

Net assets released from restrictions:

For satisfaction of time restrictions

For satisfaction of program restrictions

Expenses:
Program services
Support services:
Fundraising
Management and general

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets

before non-operating activities

Non-operating activities:
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees of $12,131

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Investment income, net

Total non-operating actimties

Net increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net asHts, end of year

Without With

Donor/Time Donor/Time

Restrictions Restrictions Total

S $  5,627,124 $ 5,627,124

- 1393,987 1393,987

- (1,258341) (1,258341)
- (232,967) (232,967)

114,020 - 114,020

114,020 5,729303 5343323

_ 4,741,440 4,741,440

- 249,950 249,950

35356 - 35356

149376 10,720393 10370,069

96,913 _ 96,913

47363 - 47,863

15,092 - 15,092

309,244 10,720,693 11,029,937

4,2(S,818 (4,205318)

6,290,454 (6,290,454) -

10,805316 224,421 11,029,937

10369,155 - 10,269,155

588,728 _ 588,728

461,753 - 461,753

11319,636 11,319,636

(514,120) 224,421 (289,699)

489357 489357

(12,468) 23367 10,899

772300 - 772300

129,416 4,784 134,200

889,448 517308 1,406,956

375328 741,929 1,117,257

197,245 4,991,070 5,188315

$  572373 $  5,732,999 $ 6305372

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 4
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30.20a

United Way

Worldwide Supplies.
Salaries, Technology dues and Confeisflces, o£Sce

employee and other Campaign. Professionai travel expenses. Depredation

Cranfaiand benefits telephone dues and communications aervlces and artd staff insurance and

awards and taxes Qceopanq^ expenses subscriptioRS and printing subcontractors development and other amortiaatioD Total

Program services:

211 New Hampshire $  - $ 633332 S • 9  I.S1368 %  7360 $ 140 % 1300 $ 873 $ 151393 $ - $ 2,075.486

Cosupmuty impact grants 1^,459 -
- -

- - •
- . - 1,395/159

Public Health Network - 438306 14.171 568 1361 479,944 10382 145,702 . 1,091.134

CARES ACT - Basic Needs 758,910 - - - -
- - - .

. 758,910

CARES ACT - Recovery Friertdly Workplace 659^ - - -
- - - .

. 659,091

Whok Village Faoiily Resource Center - 111361 79.413 12.906 - - 40,620 124 69388 31397 345309
Department of Justice - 79371 - - - - 128,n6 - 1,442 - 209,229

CARES ACT • Empower Youth 158^ - - -
- - 23313 7325 . 189338

Fuel Our Families 155^ - - -
-

- . 155,422

Recovery Friendly Workplace - 138,1^ - . 2367 . 4,123 7325 . 152,250

Work Ucuted Program - 98,246 - • -
- - 51.688 .

- 149,934

Leader in Me 144«067 - - - -
- .

. . - 144.067

Volunteer Income Tax Assstance . 106,666 . - -
. 10,209 21148 , 138343

COVTD-19 Relief Fund 135^18 . . -
.

- .
- . 135,418

literacy 20^000 . . - - . .
- 78»790 - 98.790

Other program »rvice9 35309 13OUO0 123,141 116328 112316 34346 116398 6,930 194,902 273W Z570.775

Total prograiR sttiAiM M60376 3.409337 216,725 1,410,790 119376 36,914 779387 97333 677,715 59.202 10,269,155

Supporting Servkes;
Fundraising - 432331 29306 20,661 26342 51,669 2,298 1,490 17,186 6,543 588.728

Management and general - 327,710 2Z367 15312 20346 - 46,742 1,129 22387 4,960 461.753

Tota! tupportiHg serviees
•

760341 51375 36,673 47,186 5t669 49,040 2.619 39373 11,503 1.050/181

Total functional expenses S  3,460376 $ 4.169.278 S 266,600 S  1,447,463 $  166,764 S 90383 S 828327 $ 99,952 $ 717388 $ 70.705 8 11319336

Notes Is FtnmciafStiitRiiniCs. PapS
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from donors $ 7,633,270
Cash received from grantors 4,019,420
Administrative fees 47,863
Other cash received 64,007
Cash received from trusts 92,470
Designations paid (1,551,848)
Net cash received for funds held for others 2,464

Cash paid to agencies and grantees (3,394,198)
Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others (7,150,154)

Net cash used in operating activities (236,706)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVHIES

Purchase of property and equipment (41,305)
FYoceeds from sale of investments 7,228

Net cash used in investing activities (34,077)

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of long-term debt (13,417)

Net decrease in cash (284,200)

Cash, beginning of year 1,205,303

Cash, end of year $ 921,103

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
Interest expense $ 9,599

See Notes to Financml Statements. Page 6
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way is the result of six United Ways merging together to create a single, efficient
organization that covers more Aan 80% of New Hampshire and Windsor County, Vermont. Granite United
Way improves lives by mobilizing the caring power of 1heir communities. More than fundraisers. Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volunteer leadership to invest
donor dollars to help the community learn, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives.
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in die fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way's operating expenses. Donors
may designate tfieir pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amounts
pledged to other United Ways or agendes are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as
designations expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of finandal position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amoimts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way invests in the community through three different vehides:

June 30, 2021
Community Impact Awards to partner agendes S 1,395,459
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agendes 1,258,841
Granite United Way Program services 8,873,696

Total S 11,527,996

The Board of Directors approved Community Impact Grant Awards amounting to $1,100,000 for the year
ended June 30,2022.

Note!. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Granite United Way (tiie "United Way") have been
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The significant accounting polides followed are
described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

Page?
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptioi\s in preparing financi^
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2021.

Net assets: The United Way reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets widiout donor restrictions.
Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets iinthout donor/ time restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use

at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From time to time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific
purposes which makes them imavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amoimt to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted endowment) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

The United Way has board designated net assets of $13,026 for endowment at June 30,2021.

Net assets with donor/time restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is

limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if th^ are
received with donor stiptdations that Hmit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restrictions include a situation that assets provided be maintained
pennanentiy (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy.

Contributions receivable: Campciign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $232,967 for the campaign period ended June
30,2021. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at 4.5% of tiie total pledges for the year June
30,2021.

Page 8



DooiSign Envelope ID: 7537AEDD-B6A9-4C03-AAEA-17O842CFB0A5

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

Revenue recognition - Contributions: The United Way recognizes contributions received and made,
including unconditional promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions
received are reported as either revenues without donor restrictions or revenues with donor restrictions.
Contributions with donor restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the donor in the same
year as the contribution is received are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified
as net assets released from restrictions in the same year, Promises to contribute that stipulate conditior\s to
be met before the contribution is made are not recorded imtil the conditions are met There were no

conditional promises to give as of June 30, 2021.

Donated goods and services: Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to be purchased if they had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. Various tj^es of in-kind support, including services,
call center space, gift certificates, materials and other items, amovmting to $35,356 have been reflected at
fair value in the financial statements for year ended Jtme 30, 2021.

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United Way's
program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volrmteers' time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Functional allocation of expenses: The statement of functional expenses present expenses by function and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of time and effort.

Property and eqidpment: Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.

Depredation of property and equipment is computed using tire straight-line method over tire following
useful lives:

Years

Building and building improvements 5-31 V'2
Leasehold improvements 15
Furniture and equipment 3-10

Page 9
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating measru-e: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The measure of operations includes all revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way's programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictions to support operating activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources
outside of tfiose program and services and are comprised of investment returru the changes in fair value of
&e beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositions of assets.

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject die United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Way's donor base. As a result, at Jime 30, 2021, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable.

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accoimts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to 5250,000. At June 30, 2021, there was approximately $676,000
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the fiitemal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accoimting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way's tax positions and concluded die United Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2018.

Change in accounting principle: The United Way has adopted Revenue from Contracts with CustoTtiers
(Accounting Standard Update 2014-09). Analysis of various provisions of this standard resulted in no
significant changes in the way the United Way recognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the
previously issued audited financial statements were required on a retrospective basis. The presentation and
disclosures of revenue have been enhanced in accordance with the standard.

The United Way has adopted Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Disclosure Framework - Changes to the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement (Accounting Standards Update 2018-13). The disclosures
have been updated in accordance with the standard.

Recent accoimting pronouncements: In February 2016, the FASB issued. Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02).
Under ASU 2016-02, at file commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent
to the discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset.

Page 10
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lessees (for capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for
leases existing at or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accoimting for
leases that expired before die earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full
retrospective transition approach. This standard will be effective for the United Way for the year ended
June 30, 2023, with early adoption permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact this will
have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives die highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
imobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

•  Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the fidl term of the assets or liabilities.

• Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at June 30,2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Levels

Money market funds $ 113,295 $ 33,689 $

Mutual funds:

Domestic equity 100,093 -

Fixed income 274,798 -

Fixed income funds 150,923 8,476

Corporate bonds -
45,882

Beneficial interest in assets held by ofliers - 2,171,078

Total 639,109 $ 88,047 $ 2,171,078

Page 11
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust's assets at June 30,2021.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain firumcial instruments. The United Way's
significant financial instrumente include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at June 30, 2021
Land, buildings and building improvements $ 1,440,636
Leasehold improvements 5,060
Furniture and equipment 370,804

Total property and ecjuipment 1,816300
Less accumulated depreciation (663332)

Total property and equipment, net $ 1,152,668

Note 5. Endowment Funds Held by Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance widi its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foimdation's charitable distribution rate is ourentiy 5% of the fund's
average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

The estimated value of die future distributions from the funds is included in these financial statements as

required by FASB ASC 958-605, however, all property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $86,884 from die agency endowed funds during the year ended Jxme 30,2021.

Page 12
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Designated funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foxmdation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for die
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foimdation makes distributions from
die funds to the United Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foimdatioris charitable distribution rate is
currently 5% of the fund's average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

These funds are not included in di^e financial statements, since alttiough all property in these funds was
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foimdation to be held and administered for the benefit of the
United Way, The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $5,586 from the designated funds during the year ended June 30,2021. The market
value of these hmd's assets amounted to approximately $139,000 at June 30,2021.

Note 6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2021

186,658

14,311

172,347

Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year
Federal Home Loan Classic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (4.82% at
June 30,2021). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. CoUateralized by
die United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH.

Less portion payable within one year
Total long-term debt

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at Jime 30,2021 were as follows:

Year F.nding Tune .30,
2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

14,311

15,016

15,756

16,532

17347

107,696

$ 186,658

The mortgage note contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which is tested annually based on
die year-end finandal statements.

The United Way has a revolving line-of-credit with Qtizen's Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of-credit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (3.5% as of June 30, 2021) and is secured by all
assets of the United Way. At June 30, 2021, there were no amounts outetanding on this line-of-credit
agreement. See Note 15 for details about the Payroll Protection loan.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Funds Heldfor Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

June 30, 2021
Work United Loan Default Program $ 4^55
Concord Multicultural Festival 3,729

Get Moving Manchester 1,140
Better Together Lakes Region 245

Total $ 9,669"

Note 8. Endowment Funds

The United Way's endowment consists of four individual funds established for youth programs. Whole
Village Resource Center, and general operating support Its endowment includes bodi donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by tiie Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on tiie existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thus, classifies amounts in its donor-restricted
endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted until the

Board of Directors appropriates such amoimts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
purpose restrictions that must be met before redassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amotmt contributed to an endowment fund unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of die fund is less than the sum of (a) tiie original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument

The United Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with the
prudent measures required imder the law. Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA, the United Way
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the organization and the
donor-restricted endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and
deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) odier resources
of the organization, and (7) flie investment policies of the United Way.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Underwater Endoioment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-

restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires die United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration. The United Way did not have any funds with defidendes of this
nature as of June 30,2021.

In-oestment Return Objectrves, Risk Paratneters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment polides,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks to
achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, induding investment income as well as capital appredation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Investment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations between asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.

Spending Policy: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign's income. To date ttiere have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of Jrme 30,2021 is as follows:

Board-designated endowment

Donor-restricted endowment fimds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor
Accumulated investment gains

Totalfunds

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  13,026 $ - $

142,652

105,053

13,026 $ 247.705 $

Changes in the endowment net assets as of June 30,2021 are as follows:

Endowment net assets, June 30,2020

Investment return, net

Endowment net assets, June 30,2021

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  11,545 $ 219,554 $
1,481 28,151

$ 13,026 $ 247,705 $

Total

13,026

142,652

105,053

260,731

Total

231,099

29,632

260,731
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GRANITE UNITED WAV

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

June 30, 2021
Subject to expenditure for specified time period:
Contributions receivable related to campaigns $ 2,055,226
Designations payable to otirer agencies and United Ways (261,946)

1,793,280

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Phiblic Health Network services 574,736
Manchester Proud 505,095
Leader in Me 150,092
Youth Enrichment Partnership 112,750
Literacy Program 97,198
Work United 74,255
Other programs 6,810

1,520,936

Endowments sul^ect to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (original amounts of
$142,652), which once appropriated,
is expendable to support:
Whole Village Resource Center 119,978
General Operations 97,874
Youth Programs 29,853

247,705

Beneficial interest in assets held by others:
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation 2,171,078

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 5,732,999

Pa^ 16



OocuSign Envelope ID- 7S37AEDD-B6A9-4C03-AAEA-170842CFB0A5

GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way*s financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for
general expenditure are as follows:

June 30, 2021
Cash $ 921403

Investments 704,797

Contributions receivable, net 2,902,143

Beneficial interest in trust 2,171,078

Accoimts and rent receivable 76,730

Total financial assets 6,775,851

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to;
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions (396,233)
Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor restrictions (247,705)
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (2,171,078)

Totfll aniounts unavailable for general expenditure within one year (2,815,016)

Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment (13,026)

Totalfinancial assets available to management
for general expenditure mthin one year $ 3,947,809

Liquidity Managemen t

The United Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additioirally, the United
Way has board designated net assets without donor restrictions ttiat, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could be made available for current
operations, if necessary.

Note 11. Pension Fund

The United Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For ttie year ended June
30,2021 the United Way contributed $109,028 to employees participating in the plan.

Note 12. Lease Commitments

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New Hampshire.
The lease required monthly payments of $3437 through August 31,2018.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Diiring a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $6,082 through June 30,2021.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on September 1,2018 through August 31,2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $1,760 through August 31,2020. After August 31,2020, fire rent will
increase each year depending on the consumer price index. The lease requires payments for common costs.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two year term
commencing on January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020 for an office space in Berlin, New Htimpshire.
The lease requires monttily payments of $187 through December 31,2020. The lease continues on a month to
monttr basis after December 31,2020.

Total rent expense for these leases amounted to approximately $160,500 for the year ended June 30,2021.

The United Way leases multiple copier machines under tire terms of operating lease agreements. The
monttily lease payments amount to approximately $2,500. The lease expense amounted to approximately
$24,000 for these leases for the year ended June 30,2021.

The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending Tiinp. .30

2022 $ 46,654
2023 38,176

2024 8,759

2025 5,482

2026 4,112

Total $ 103,183

Note 13. Commitments

In Plymouth, the United Way rents space in a building which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1,995 per month. For tire year
ended June 30,2021, the rental income amounted to $96,913.

Note 14. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The United Way pays dues to United Way Worldwide. The United Way's dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $154,044 for the year ended June 30,2021.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15. COVID -19 and the Paycheck Protection Program Loan

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and coiild further impact the United Way's operations. The extent of
the impact of COVID-19 on the United Way will depend on future developments, including the duration and
spread of the outbreak and the impact on the United Way's donors and the community.

In April 2020, the United Way received $772,500 in funds from die federal Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP). The PPP is a loan designed to provide a direct incentive for small businesses to keep their workers on
the payroll SBA will forgive loans if all employees are kept on die payroll for the specified period of time
and the money is used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities.

During the year ended June 30,2021, the United Way received forgiveness for the PPP loan. The forgiveness
is recognized in die statement of activities and changes in net assets as nonoperating income.

Note 16. Subsequent Events

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through November 18, 2021, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after diat date. Subsequent
to year end, the United Way is in the final stages of an alignment with the United Way of Greater Seacoast

There were no odier subsequent events that would require disclosure in financial statements for the year
ended June 30,2021.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNrTY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Community

Impact

Awards

Blueberry Express Day Care Center $  25,000

Concord Coalition to End Homelessness 20,000

Concord Family YMCA 12,500

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 22,500

Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 3,850

Merrimack Valley Day Care 37,500

New Hampshire Harm Reduction 10,000

Second Start 10,150

The Friends Program:
Foster Grandparents 16,000

Emergency Housing 25,000

The Pittsfield Youth Workshop 25,000

Tiny Twisters Child Care Center 7,500

Waypoint 5,000

$  220,000

Emerging

Opportunity
Grants

Concord Police Department $  1,782

City of Concord 5,527

$  7,309
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES

NORTH COUNTRY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Community
Impact

Awards

Believe in Books $  1,998

Boys and Girls Club of tixe Nortit Country 10,000

Copper Cannon Camp 6,000

Disability Rights Center 2,500

Epilepsy Foimdation 500

Grafton County Senior Citizens:
ServiceLink 4,750

RSVP 5/)90

Senior Nutrition and Transportation 5,625

Greenpath Financial Wellness 500

NH Legal Assistance 5,000

Northern Human Services 2,250

The Family Resource Center 4,263

Tri-Coimty Commuiuty Action Program:
Support Center at Burch House 4,262

Tyler Blain House 5,262

Waypoint Parenting Transitional Living Program 5,000

$  63,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES

UPPER VALLEY REGION

Year Ended June 30,2021

Community

Impact

Awards

Child Care Center in Norwich $ 10,000

Copper Cannon Camp 1,000
Creative Lives 7,000

Cover Home Repair 10,000
Dismas of Vermont 2,500

Disability Rights Center - NH 2,500
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 3,750
Global Campuses Foundation 4,500
Good Neighbor Health Care 2,650
Grafton County Senior Qtizens Council 3,750
Headrest 3,500

HIV/HCV Resource Center 10,000
Mascoma Community Healthcare 20,000

Ml Ascutney Hospital and Health Center 1,500
Safeline 3,000

Second Wind Foimdation 5,500

Southeastern Vermont Community Action 14,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30,2021

Community

Impact

Awards

(Continued)

Springfield Family Center $  2,500
Springfield Supported Housing Program 5,000

The Family Place 20,000

The Mayhew Program 2,500

The Spedal Needs Support Center 4,000

TLC Family Resomce Center 5,500

Tri-Valley Transit 500

Twin Pines Housing Trust 2,850

Upper Valley Habitat for Humanity: 3,750

Food Services 12,500

Shelter Services 6,750

Upper Valley Trails Alliance 1,000

Visions for Creative Housing Solutions 7,500

Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and NH 15,000

Waypoint 7,500

West Central Behavioral Health 7,500

Willing Hands Enterprises 5,000

Windham & Windsor Housing Trust 4,500

Immigration Legal Services Program 4,000

Emergency Shelter and Housing Program 2,000

$  225,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended Jxine 30,2021

Community

Impact

Awards

Boys & Girls Qub of Greater Salem, Inc.
City Year New Hampshire
Community Caregivers of Greater Deny
Copper Cannon Camp
Disability Rights Center - NH
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Epilepsy Foundation New England
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire
Granite State Children's Alliance

International Institute of New England
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.
Mayhew Program
NeighborWorks Southern New Hampshire
New Hampshire Legal Assistance
NHBA Pro Bono Referral Program
Plaistow YMCA

Rockingham Nutrition and Meals on Wheels Program
Salem Haven, Inc.

St. Joseph Community Services, Inc.
The Granite YMCA

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

The Upper Room:
Adolescent Wellness Program
Greater Deny Juvenile Diversion Program

Waypoint

YWCA

14,280

10,000

6,246

5,000

6,000

12,750

5,524

10,200

5,000

7,650

10,000

5,000

5,000

13,320

9,180

12,750

11,250

6,000

16,250

10,000

10,200

15,300

12,750

7,500

17,850

245,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO

QUALIFIED PARTNER AGENCIES - YOUTH ENRICHMENT PARTNERSHIP
SOUTHERN REGION (Continued)
Year Ended June 30,2021

Youth

Enrichment

Partnership

Amoskeag Health
Boys and Girls Qub of Manchester
Southern New Hampshire University, Center for New Americans
City Year New Hampshire
Daniel Webster Council, Boy Scouts of America
Girls Incorporated of New Hampshire
Manchester Community Music School
M£inchester Police Athletic League
Media Power Youth

Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

New Hampshire Legal Assistance
The Granite YMCA

University of New Hampshire, STEM Discovery Lab
UpReach Therapeutic Equestrian Center

55,000

60,000

20,000

10,000

10,000

20,000

15,000

30,000

43,150

30,000

10,000

150,000

20,000

15,000

488,150
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES

NORTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30,2021

Community
Impact
Awards

Believe in Books

Coos County Family Healfli Services, Inc.
Copper Cannon Camp
Disability Rights Center
Epilepsy Foundation New England
Green Path Financial Wellness

Harvest Christian Fellowship:
Community Caf6
Feeding Hope Food Pantry

Helping Hands North, Inc.
North Conway Community Center
Northem Human Services

The Family Resource Center at Gorham
Tri-Coimty Community Action PYogram;
Tyler Blain House
ServiceLink

2/)00

1,500

3,000

1,250

501

850

4,000

4,500

4,000

2,000

2,250

4,000

1,149

1,000

32,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES

CENTRAL REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Community
Impact

Awards

Big Brofliers Big Sisters of New Hampshire $  7,500

Boys and Girls Qubs of Central New Hampshire 15,000

Circle Program 5,000

Greifton County Senior Qtizens Council, Inc. 2,625

Granite State Children's Alliance 5,000

Health First Family Care Center 10,000

Kingswood Youth Center 7300

Lakes Region Community Developers 12300

Lakes Region Community Services 12300

Lakes Region Mental Healtti Center 10,000

Mayhew Program 2300

New Beginnings Without Violence and Abuse 10,000

New Hampshire Legal Assistance 2,625

Pemi Youth Center 3,750

Flymoudi Area Recovery Connection 8300

$  115,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

Assistance

Listing

Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures
to

Subrecipients

Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster

U3, Eicpartmcnt of Health and Human Services

State of N.H. Deparunert of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 S  127,494 $ 118,886

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 93.074 111,917 104,713

Public Health Crisis Resportse 93.354 4,723 -

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.758 30,130 30,130

Disaster Grant Public Assistance 97.036 32,934 -

EnxTTonmental Public Health and Emergency Response 93.070 13,^8 12311

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 93.243 72,972 69,252
Total Stale ofN.H, Departmetil ofHealth aiid Human Services - Soufii Central Public Health Nettuork 393,878 335392

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Network

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 145,382

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 93.074 78,652 -

Public Health Crisis Response 93.354 32,602 -

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.758 22,650

Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93.268 12,546 -

Disaster Grant Public Assistance 97,036 28324 _

Enviroiuncntal Public Health and Emergency Response 93.070 11,953 -

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 93.243 76348 55A10

Total Slate of N.H. Department of Health and Human Senrices-Capital Area Public Health Network 409357 55410

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human Services - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 111,441 .

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 93.074 55,204 .

Public Health Crisis Response 93.354 31,631 a.

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.758 29,024 •

Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93.268 11,133 -

Disaster Grant Public Assistance 97,036 2,450 .

Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response 93.070 8,165 .

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 93.243 61,630 900

Total State ofN.H. Department ofHealth and Human Senrices - Carroll County Coalitionfor Public Health 310,698 900

Total Regional Public Health Network Senrices Cluster 1,114,033 391,802
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

For the Year Ended }une 30,2021

Federal Grantor

Pass-lhrough Grantor

Program Title

Aasiatanee

listing

Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures

to

Subredpients

US. Internal Revenue Services

Department of the Treasury

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Matching Grant Program

Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security fCARESl

Governor's Office for Emergertcy and Relief Recovery

Basic Needs

NH Empowering Youth Program

Recovery Friervily Workplace

Total CARES

US. Department of [ustice

State of N.H. Department of Justice

Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Program (COAP)-Recovery
Clime Victim Assistance-ACERT

Totnl S/flte o/NH Deporfwienf ofluslice

Federal Emergencv Management Agency fFEMAl
State of N.H. Department of Safety, Homeland Security and Emergency Management
Emergency Support Function (ESF14)

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Steteof N.H. Division for Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

State Opioid Resportse Grant

Total ExpendituTes ofFederal Axoards

The accotnpanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule.

21.009

21.019

21.019

21.019

16.836

16.575

97.042

93.788

$  56,144

741,523

200,000

725,000

1,666323

192,929

28,222

221,151

55,778

451,198

5  3366327

702,183

158300

659,091

1319,774

112,060

16,656

128,716

$  2340,292
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO SCHFDUI.E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Notel. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way ("die United Way"), under programs of the federal government for the year ended
Jime 30, 2021. The irdormation in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the United Way, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the United Way.

Note 2. Basis of Accounting

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
United Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in diis schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of he program
costs. Entire program costs could be more han shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as
applicable, eiher he cost principles in he OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, or he cost principles contained in Tide 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

h accordance wih OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs are determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in he accompanying Schedule are determined by he independent auditor to be major programs.

Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes $250,219 claimed as an indirect cost recovery. The United Way elected to
use he 10-percent de ininimis indirect cost rate allowed imder he Uniform Guidance.
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSIQNAi. ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Graiute United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goixmment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Granite United Way as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November
18,2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

hi planning and performing our audit of the financiai statements, we considered Granite United Way's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedmes that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Way's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Way's internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatemente on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such fiiat there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant defickncy is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enougji to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Oui consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that mig^t be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite United Way's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on ttie determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compli<mce with tiiose provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of lhat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

^ Corv^pa

Concord, New Hampshire
November 18,2021
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM

GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on Compliancefor Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement tiiat could have a direct and material effect on each of
Granite United Way's major federal programs for year ended June 30, 2021. Granite United
Way's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite United Way's major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and tiie audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (\Jmioim. Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompHance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above drat could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about Granite United Way's compliance wiih those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite
United Way's compliance.

Page 33

70 Commercial Street, 4th Floor 59 Emerald Street 44 School Street
Concord.NR 03301 Keene.NH0343l Lebanon, NH03766

v; 603-224-5357 v; 603-357-7665 v: 603-448-2650
f: 603-224-3792 f: 603-224-3792 f: 603-448-2476



OocuSign Envelope ID: 7637AEDI>B$A9-4C03-AAEA-170842CFB0A5

Opinion on Each Major Federa I Program

In our opinion. Granite Uruted Way complied, in aU material respects, with ftie types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2021.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over compliance.

A defidenq^ in internal ojntrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not aUow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material loeakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of defidendes in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wiU not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a defidency, or a combination of defidendes, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in die first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all defidendes in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant defidendes. We did not identify any
defidendes in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist diat have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe die scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and die results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Giudance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

IJjickaiu. t C- IO

Concord, New Hampshire
November 18,2021

cinpCtn
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting;

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Is any noncompiiance material to financial statement noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

fiitemal control over major federal programs;

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor"s report issued on compliance for major
federal programs; immodified

Any audit finding disclosed ttiat are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing Numbers

21.019 - Basic Needs

21.019 - NH Empowering Youth Program

21.019 - Recovery Friendly Workplace

93.788 - State Opioid Response Grant

Naune of federal program or cluster

CARES - Govemor's Office for Emergency and
Relief Recovery
CARE - Govemor's Office for Emergency and
Relief Recovery
CARE - Govemor's Office for Emergency and
Relief Recovery
DHHS - State of N.H. Division for Behavioral

Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A cuid type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

Section 11 - Finanrial Statpmpnf Findings

No financial statement findings noted.

Section HI - Federal Awards Findings

No federal awards findings noted.
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2022 Board of Directors

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/ CELL / FA): / E-MAIL

Dr. Larissa Baia

President, Regional College Dept.

Member's Position: DE&I Chair

Assistant; Liz Lawson

.akes Reoion Community College

Joseph Bator
Executive Vice President &

Senior Lender

Seni

PrimarvBank Work Phone;

Kathleen Bizarro-Thunberg (Kathy)
Executive Vice President

Member's Position: Secretary & Audit Chair

NH Hospital Association Work Phone;

sHHIil

Joseph Carelli (Joe)
President of NH and VT

Assistant: Mary Charron

Work Phone;

jjjjjjjjjH

Mitchel Davis (Mitch)
Vice President & Chief Information

Officer

Dartmouth College ^^^llllllllllll^

Michael Delahanty (Mike)
Superintendent of Schools

Assistant; Patty Scanlan

Salem School District

r
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2022 Board of Directors

Douglas DeLara Jr. (Doug)
Manager

Member's Position: TYeasurer

Baker 1 Newman | Noyes

Patricia Donahue (Pat)
Director of Human Resources

Member's Position: Southern CIC Chair I"

BOARD MEMBER 1 ADORES? 1 PHONE/CELL / FAX / E-MAIL

Christopher Emond (Chris)
Executive Director

Boys & Girls Club of Central

Douglas Foley (Doug)
President

Assistant; Roxanne M. Parkhurst

Eversource

11

Colby Gamerster
Owner & Attorney

Gamerster Law Office

Vlarlene Hammond

Underwriting Account Executive
Lincoln Financial Group

1" —^
John Hughes
Attorney

McLane, Middleton Law Firm

ir —■
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2022 Board of Directors

Diana Johnson

Relationship Officer & Marketing
Vlanager

imack CoLinty Savings BankMerr

Joseph Kenney [The Provident Bank
Vice President & Commercial Lending
Officer
Member's Position; Merrimack County
CIC Chair

Assistant; Linda O'Donnell

Assistant: Linda O'Donnell

Sally Kraft
Vice President, Community Health,
Population Health Management Div.
Member's Position: Granite CIC Chair

'kssistant: Brittany Goodwin

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medica

BOARD MEMBER

BOARD MEMBER

ADDRESS PHONE/FAX/CELL/EMAIL

Christina Lachance

Director of New Hampshire's Council
for Thriving Children

Dr. Charles Lloyd (Chuck)
President

Member's Position: Northern NH

CIC Chair

White Mountains Community
Dolleg^e

Ji
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2022 Board of Directors

Lawrence Major, Jr. (Larry)
Director of Government Relations

Pike Industries, INC.

Carolyn Maloney
Treasurer

Hvoertherm

Marc Ed Marcheti (Ed)
Senior Vice President, Engineering
and Technical Operations
Assistant; Robin Wright

Comcast

c

Catherine Nlckerson (Cathy) WTPheian/ Assured Partners E-mail:

Sean Owen

President

Member's Position: Interim Chair

Wedu

Randy Perkins
Retired

Beth Rattigan
Attorney

Member's Portion: Upper Valley
CIC Chair

r
:versource E-mail:

Downs Rachlin Martir

Upper Valley CIC Chair-

Im
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2022 Board of Directors

Peter Rayno
Executive Vice Presldent/NH Banking
& Lending Director

Enterprise Bank

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/FAXyCELUEMAIL

BOARD MEMBER

Betsey Rhynhart
\/ice President of Population Health

Concord Hospital
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2022 Board of Directors

Justin Slattery
Executive Director

William Sher^ (Bill)
Chief Operating Officer

Program Coordinator: Leah D'Anjou

Granite United Way

Beiknap EDC

Timothy Soucy (Tim} Catholic Medical Center
Senior Executive Director of Community
Health & Mission

Charla Stevens

Attorney
Member's Position: Vice Chair/Governance

Chair

Retired

McLane, Middleton Law Firm

Rusty Talbot
CEO

Member's Position: North Country CIC Chair

North Country Climbing Centei

Nicholas Toumpas (Nick)
Retired

HHS; Human Services

Robert Tourigny
Executive Diredor

NeighborWorks Southern Nl-
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2022 Board of Directors

Patrick Tufts

President & CEO

Director of Strategy and Alignment;
Nichole Reimer

Granite United Wa-

Catherine Walker (Cass)
Director of Human Resources

Member's Position: Central Region
C/C Chair

Concord hospital- l^ccnis

r
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PAMELA BAILEY

Profile

Friendly and engaging team piayer; an energetic professional with experience in customer service, non-profit leadership,
iearning & development, accounting, office management and financial coaching.

Experience

Contracts Specialist and Workplace Wellness Director j Granite United Way 2021 -current
Contracts Specialist; Responsible for oversight, monitoring, budgeting, and invoicing for government contracts and grants as
well as analyzing, developing, and managing the solicitation, administration, and compliance of subrecipient awards, contracts,
and agreements- Workplace Weliness Director: Work in coordination with the VP of Pubiic Health/Services Group in the
development of the Workplace Wellness Strategy that combines our existing workplace initiatives to further support both
employers and employees in our region, Lead internal Workplace Wellness Team.

Patient Customer Care Coordinator | Integrated Oral Health 2020 - 2021
Provide excellent customer experience by scheduling appointments, answering calls, providing insurance information,
fielding all account and billing questions, patient intake including COVID safety protocols, and documentation of
appointment outcomes and follow up needed. Also provide web maintenance and marketing support to the office.

Community Impact Program Director | Green Mountain United Way 2012 - 2019
Implemented and managed programs including youth programming, substance abuse/recovery, workforce development,
and financial coaching, Master Coach and trainer for the Intro to Financial Coaching class. Assisted multiple businesses
with their corporate campaigns, including kickoff events, staff orientation, and payroll deduction. Worked on
collaboration events with multiple area non-profit agencies towards a shared mission. Assisted in grant writing and data
collection. Performed H/R duties and budgeting for our agency as lead of the Finance Committee. Prepared all reporting
needed by United Way Worldwide.

Banker II | Citizens Bank 2007-2012
Made 20 - 30 weekly outbound business development calls to both customers and non-customers. Teller functions
including ATM and vault manager. Opened accounts for both personal and business accounts and offered additional

products/services to strengthen the relationship with the customers. Prepared loan applications; made referrals to
investment banker as well as comfnercial lines. Provided exceptional customer service and financial coaching.

Education

Master - Education | Cambridge College BS - Business Management | Norwich University
Focus on adult learning. Minor In Marketing and Economics.

Skills & Abilities

•  Professionalism and customer service • Microsoft Office programs

•  Retail and office management • Team building

• Written and verbal communication • Multi-tasking and organization

Activities and Other Experience

Volunteer activities: Day of Caring 2016-2019, Volunteer Firefighter II 2008-2013, Northfield playground committee
2016-2018. Other Experience: Retail store Associate, Office Manager, Corporate Trainer-customer service, learning
& development, and public speaking.
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Stephanie Turek

Competencies
• Strategic and creative professional with a strong history of solving problems and establishing relationships
• Proven consensus builder with success working with large and small groups of diverse stakeholders including:

corporate and legislative leaders, board members, physicians, educators, students, staff, volunteers, and
individuals

• Energetic team leader skilled at completing projects within budget and established time frames

Professional Experience

Granite United Way, Manchester, NH

ASSIST VICE PRESIDENT. COORDINATED SERVICES. 2022

Responsible for the oversight and development of Coordinated Services to enhance and improve the
efficiency, outcomes, and coordination of services among multiple diverse internal and external systems.
Oversight includes Early Childhood Initiatives, 211NH, Whole Village Family Resource Center, and Justice
Initiatives. Focus includes developing processes for data sharing, ensuring consistent high quality program
delivery, and improving collaboration among key stakeholders and partners.

Frisbie Memoriai Hospitai, Rochester, NH
112-beti HCA hospital serving the Greater Seocoast o/NH and ME

INTERIM DIRECTOR. CENTER FOR CANCER CARE. 2020-2021

Responsible for planning, implementing, and managing operations of outpatient Oncoiogy/Hematology
Services through ownership transition. Worked with healthcare team and administration to analyze needs
and implement strategy to Improve processes and patient care. Closely monitored staffing, volumes, and
expenses. Supervised and coached clinical and nonclinical staff. Coordinated merger of two departments.
Developed and documented internal processes.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. FUND DEVELOPMENT. 2017-2020

Worked with organizational leaders to identify priorities and develop and initiate programs to meet
strategic goals. Experience included project development and implementation, creation and measurement
of project outcomes, team development, reporting, compliance, communication, and budget management.
Worked with finance to improve financial controls and procedures. Collaborated with president and
leadership on special initiatives and community relations and served as Internal resource. Represented
hospital leadership to internal and external audiences. Supervised Department of Volunteers and Gift Shop.

Key accomplishments:

•  Increased revenue of signature event by 18% in first year

•  Facilitated establishment of multi-million dollar fund with proceeds from the sale of the hospitai
•  Administered comprehensive redeployment of hospital staff during initial COVID19 response
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Crotched Mountain Foundation, Greenfield, NH
Human service agency anchored by a 105-student school and 62-bed hospital and outpatient clinics serving adults and children with disabilities

MANAGER. CORPORATE & FOUNOATION RELATIONS. 2013-2017

Worked with leadership, staff, and participants to establish and support program goals, identified

opportunities for program improvement to increase resource prospects. Experience included project

management, measurement of project outcomes, award negotiations, donor engagement, and budget

management.

Key accomplishments:

• Met grant income goal of $350,000+ through organizational leadership changes

•  Coordinated multidisciplinary teams to develop and revise clinical and educational programs

•  Implemented process changes to improve operational efficiencies and transparency

CARE NEW ENGLAND HEALTH SYSTEM (includes Butler and Kent Hospitals)

Butler Hospital, Providence, Rl
148-bed nonprofit psychiatric hospital and academic research center affiliated with Brown University

SENIOR PHILANTHROPY OFFICER. 2008-2013

Responsible for the research, cultivation, solicitation, and stewardship of individuals, corporations,

foundations, and public funds to support mental health care initiatives. Established formal grant seeking

process. Initiated outreach to local and federal legislators for policy support and resource opportunities.

Assisted with event coordination.

Key accomplishments:

•  Created process to seek funding on system-wide level (3 hospitals and one health agency)

•  Developed and Implemented comprehensive strategy to secure first federal appropriation ($200,000)
•  Developed campaign to educate how the capacity of psychiatric hospital was critical to the state's

hospital emergency system

Kent Hospital, Warwick Rl
3S9-bed nonprofit community hospital

PHILANTHROPY OFFICER. GRANTS PROGRAM. 2004 - 2008

Responsible for budget development, research, proposal writing, creation of and adherence to submission

schedule, negotiation of award, budget and compliance, and all reporting. Coordinated with staff,

leadership, and community stakeholders to identify opportunities and develop fundable projects/programs.
Initiated reiationships with public officials for policy and financial support. Met all established fundraising

goals; exceeded FY07 goal of $700,000 by more than 20%.

Education

MASTER OF ARTS Candidate, SOCIAL AND PUBLIC POLICY

Duquesne University, Pittsburgh, PA (coursework complete; thesis not presented)

BACHELOR OF ARTS, POLITICAL SCIENCE

Duquesne University, Pittsburgh, PA

GRADUATE, BUTLER HOSPITAL LEADERSHIP PROGRAM

(10-month intensive program requiring nomination, program acceptance, leadership endorsement, and final project presentation)
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SHANNON SWETT BRESAW, MSW

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work
2002-2004 University of New Hampshire

Bachelor of Arts - Clinical Counseling Psychology
1999 - 2002 Keene State College

Durham, NH

Keene, NH

EXPERIENCE

2007 - Present

Vice President ofPublic Health
Granite United Way Concord, NH

Accomplishments:

•  Provides Program Director support for the NH Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace
initiative through program development, staff oversight, resource development,
marketing/communications, and evaluation

• Works to align and leverage Granite United Way investments and strategies with other
statewide efforts to address public health, addiction, and social determinants of health

•  Provides content expertise and consultation in the areas of substance use disorders,
public health, community development, contract management, grant writing, reporting,
and evaluation

• Develops and maintains strategic partnerships and relationships with key stakeholders
across NH

•  Provides contract management and oversight to 3 out of the 13 Regional Public Health
Networks in NH, including the Capital Area Public Health Network, the Carroll County
Coalition for Public Health and the South Central Public Health Network

•  Provides direction and leadership towards achievement of each Network's philosophy,
mission, strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service
delivery, financial management, and community/public relations

• Coordinates all aspects of federal, state, and local grants and contracts, including resource
development/grant-writing, financial oversight and reporting

• Develops community health improvement plans, evaluation plans, and other data-driven,
research-informed strategic plans for the Networks

• Works with connmmily impact committees and volunteers through Granite I
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2005 - 2007 Community Response (CoRe) Coalition Belknap County, NH
Outreach Coordinator, Project Director

Accomplishments:
•  Provided leadership for a county-wide, regional alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse

prevention coalition

•  Strengthened capacity of coalition through outreach and collaboration, including partnerships
with 10 community sectors, including government, schools, businesses, healthcare, and
safety

• Coordinated all aspects of federal, state, and local grants, including financial oversight,
progress reports, communications, and work plan goals, objectives, and activities

• Developed, coordinated, promoted, and implemented events, programs, and trainings for
youth and adults

•  Strengthened youth leadership and involvement in substance abuse prevention activities
•  Supervised part-time staff, youth leaders, and volunteers

2004 - 2005 Caring Community Network of the Twin Rivers (CCNTR) Franklin, NH
Community Program Specialist

Accomplishments:

• Assisted in development of programming related to strengthening the public health
infrastructure

• Recruited new participants to agency committees and projects
•  Facilitated organizational collaboration, compiled research, and developed proposals to

funding sources to address community needs
•  Facilitated several ongoing committees

• Developed and maintained productive relationships with community and state leaders and
agencies

•  Participated in several trainings/seminars related to issues including substance abuse
prevention, emergency preparedness, leadership, and public health infrastructure
development

• Wrote numerous articles and press releases concerning community and public health

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
> American Public Health Association: NH Affiliate Representative to the Governing

Council 2018-Current

> NH Public Health Association: Board Member 20 IS-Current

> Prevention Task Force of the Governor's Commission (Co-Chair): 2017-Current
> NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and

Recovery (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018
> NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Committee (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018
> NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association: Treasurer 2007-2011,

2014-2015

> NH Prevention Certification Board's Peer Review Committee: 2009-2011
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Shannon Swett V? Public Health S41,181.00
Stephanie Turek AVP Coordinated Services $43,500.00
Pamela Bailey AVP WW/Contracts Specialist $0.00
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

12» PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27IAS44 I40MS2-334S ExL 9944

Fai:«03-27I-4332 TDDAcccti; 1-SOO-73S-2964 www.<lltbi.nb.t«v

August 20. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Chri^opher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Granite United Way (VC# 160015), Concord. New Hampshire,
to continue providing substance use disorder information and call referral services through the
use of 2-1-1 NH. statewide, by exercising a conlract renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $476,000 from $1,347,156 to $1,823,158 and extending the completion date from
September 29, 2021 to September 29, 2022, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 31, 2018, item
#17, amended on May 6, 2020, item #36, and most recentty amended on March 24. 2021, item
#17.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and juslined,

05-95-92-020610-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Ye#r

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $166,262 -  $0 $186,282

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $441,695 $0 $441,695

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057047 $121,600 $0 $121,600

Tht Dtparlmtnt ̂  Htaiih oiid Human Struiet*'Miuion it lojoin eammunititl and femiliet
■n prauidingopporiuiiilif for eitiuni loaehieue htalth and indtptndmce.
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046 $317,333 $0 $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046

$158,666 SO $158,666

2022 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Pel
92057048

»0 $357,000 $357,000

2023 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Pel
92057048

$0 $119,000 $119,000

Total $1,347,156 $476,000 $1,823,166

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue enhancing .and increasing substance use
tfsorder information and referral sen/ices through 2-T-1 NH. a telephonic sen/ice that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

Approximately 5.400 individuals wiii be served from September 30. 2021 through
September 29, 2022.

Individuals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to the Doorways and other current resources In their community. During aflerhours
and on weekends, callers are directiy connected to an on-call clinician associated wlU^ Doorways
services.

From January 1. 2021 through July 31, 2021. 2-1-1 NH received 82.004 calls, of which
3,932 calls were retted to substance use disorder. The 3,932 calls related to 8ut>stance use
disorder resulted in 3,815 referrals directiy to the Doorways, including 1.111 dtr^ hansfers to an
on-cail clinician associated with the Doorways.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day, seven (7) days per week. Call center services include providing assistance to clients
with locating transportation, emergency shelter, and information relative to respite shelter
vouchers.

The Contractor continues to ensure indlvlduais calling for reasons related to substance
use disorderareableto speak to a 2-1-1 NH representative during the initial call. Further, callers
remain on the line while the 2-1-1 NH representslive connects the individual to a Doorway during
business hours, or ari on-call Doorways clinician after hours.

The Department will continue developing performance measures, utilizing baseline data
collected on the percentage of callers who received a busy tone vrfien they call; the average
amount of time callers wait in call queues before an agent responds; the percentage of callers
vtrho hang up before reaching an agent; and the average amount of time for the call to be
answered.
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As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of tffe original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, avellabie
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the one (1) year available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders will not have a centralized phone number to call to initiate access to
information and connections to services, which could result in delays in accessing r>eeded care
and may result in deaths, overdoses and relapses.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI083326

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori.A. Shibtnette

Commissionef
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr.. Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Goulct

Co/wm/sj/oncr

August 30, 2021

Lori A. ShibincUc. Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Plcasatit Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibincttc:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existing contract with Granite United Way of, Concord,
NH as described below and rcfcrcrrccd as DolT No. 2019-053C.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-1-1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for individuals and their families statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is $476,000, increasing the current contract from
$1,347,156 to $1,823,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2022,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2021. This amendment shall become
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 29, 2022.

A copy ofthis letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. ^

.  Sincerely,

Denis Goulct

DG/kaf

DolT#2015-053C

RID: N/A

cc; Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite" United Way ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on OctotierSI. 2018, (Item #17), as amended on May 6, 2020. (Item #36). subsequently amended March
24, 2021, (Item #17). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$1,823,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Section 3, Stale Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Staridards,
Subsection 3.3 to read;

3.3 Reserved

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 3, State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, Paragraph 3.5.4, to read;

3.5.4. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

3.5.4.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds are not provided to any Individual who, or organization that, proyides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 3. State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, by adding Subsection 3.6., to read;

3.6. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes;

3.6.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

3.6.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

3.6.2. Other key data as requested by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit 8 Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., to
read;

1. This agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response as

2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor

A-S-1.0 Page lots Dale
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awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, and
as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79T1083326.

7. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3., to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment ,#3 SOR II Budget.

8.- Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5.. to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (iSth) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month,
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department
in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to;

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or lime cards that support the hours employees wrorked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must lie based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs\

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an
allowable expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be
used for light snacks, not to exceed three dollars

[pt
2019-BDAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor Initial?

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 , Da'e.



DocuSign EnveJope ID: 7537AEDD-B6A9-4C03-AAEA-170842CFB0A5

DocuSgn Envelope 10:0BFF2B56-61BC^040-8F00^7F2eiC6C09B

($3.00) per person for clienls.

5.1.3.1.8. Celt phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year,

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the Insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not
need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based
on third parly revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

9. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SOR It Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

2019-8DAS-04-CALLC-01-A03 Granite United Way Contractor Initia'

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

8/J1/2021

Date

f«*

taaciMWCM*!^

Namexatja fo*
Title;

Di rector

8/25/2021

Date

Granite United Way

C—OecutignM Br
fflMtt tufr
-4»47S«TA1tCOM5F-

Name: Patrick Tufts

President

SS-2019-BOAS-04-CALLC01.A03

A-S-1.0

Granite United Way

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

8/31/2021

•DocuStontd bjr;

0KM92E33CME-.

xnrrtremTBTtrros"
Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-20l9-BDAS-04-CAaCM)1-A03 Granite United Way

A-S-1.0 Page S ol 5
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HftR01'21 fn 3-21 RCUD n
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHfRE

Lofi A. SUWarttc

Cemailstleiier

Kiljt&Fox
Oirctwr

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

VmSlON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

l29PtEASANTST«EET,CONCORD.NH 03JOJ
M3-2TI-9$44 I-M&4U-334S Eit. 9S44

Fex;6a3-27MU] TDDActw: l-SOO-735-2964 •vww.phhi.nh.to*

February tO, 2021

Hie Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively emend an existing Solo Source contract with Granite United Way (Vendor
#16001&-B00i). Concord. NH to continue providing substance use disorder information and call
referral services through the use of 2-1-1 NH, statewide, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $247.156from $1,lOO.OOOlo $1,347,156 and by extending the
completion date from September 29, 2020 to September 29. 2021 effective retroactive to
September 30, 2020 upon Governor end Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract svas approved by Governor and Council on October 31. 2018, (Item
#17) and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6,2020,'(ltem #36).

Funds are available in the following account for Stete Fiscal Year 2021 and are anticipated
to be available In Stale Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances betwMn state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-92-020S10-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT '

Stale

Fiecal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $378,400 ${192,138) $186,262

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $600,000 $(158,305) $441,695

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057040 $121,600 $0 $121,600

n*Dtpartmtnt o/Hnllh girf Huiuen Stnjites'.Mmion U lojtinconiinunilittaiid/omiUt*
in pnuidiifepporUinititM/itreiUunt to Qckitvt AeofiA ond indtptndtntt.
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end ihe HoAocetHe Counca

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057047 $0 $121,600 $121,600

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057048 $0 $317,333 $317,333

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046

$0 $158,666 $158,666

(
Total $1,100,000 $247,166 1,347,166

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because there could not be a lapse in services to clients.
Additionally, sufficient funds In State Fiscal Year 2021 were not avallalsle in the operating budget
considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) in approving New Hampshire's requests (or continued
State Opioid Response Grant funding the efforts to add the state appropriations were deferred.

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any eubsequant amerKlments to be labelled as sole source. The
Department utilizes 2-1-1 NH as Its public-facing system to access information and service
referrals for substance use disorder services.

The purpose of this request Is to continue enlnancing and increasing substance'use
disorder information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH. a telephonic service that provides
confidential information about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

Approximately 30,000 individuals wHi be served from September 30, 2020 through
September 29, 2021.

indrviduals calling 2-1-1 NH seeking Information or substance use disorder service access
are referred to current resources in their community end. when appropriate, directly connected to
an on-cal) clinician associated with Doorways services.

Services provided through 2-1-1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. Call center services have tieen enhanced to inciude assistance
with locating transportation for eligible clients: providing assistance for clients who are in need of
emergency shelter, ar>d utilizing a respite shelter voucher policy for Doorway clients end their
families

' The Department will continue monitoring contracted services using the following
performance measures:

•  Tite percentage of callers who received a busy lone when they call.

•  The average amount of lime callers wait in call queues before an agent responds.

• The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

• The average amount of time for the call to be answered.
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As referenced In ExhibH C-1 of the orisinel contracl, the parties have the option to ertend
the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services. avaUabte
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Coundt approval. The department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available at this lime.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals seeking help for
substance use disorders may not have a phone number to call to initiate asking for help, which
could result in potential delays in their access to care

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685 and FAIN TI083326-

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lor! A- Shiblnette

Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr.. Concord. NH 03301
Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Accos: 1.800-735-2964

www.fih.gov/doil

Ocnb Goulei

Commissioner

February 3,2021

Lori A. Shibincttc, Commissioner
Dcpanmcni of Health and Human Services

SiatcofNew Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinettc;

This letter represents formal notincalion that the Dcpanmcni of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to retroactively amend an existing Sole Source contract with Granite
United Way of, Concord, NH as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-0536.

The purpose of this amendment is to enhance and increase substance use disorder
information and referral services through the 2-I-1 NH statewide telephonic service that
provides confidcniial information about substance use disorder support services, and
referrals for individuals and their families statewide.

The funding amount for this amendment is 5247,156, inercasing the current contract from
51,100,000 to $1,347,156 and by extending the completion date to September 29, 2021,
from the original completion date of September 29, 2020. This amendment shall become
effective retroactive to September 30, 2020 upon Gowmor and Executive Council
approval through September 29,2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany the DcpartriKnt of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulct

DG/kaf

DolT «0I5-053B

RID: N/A

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DolT

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Call Center (211)

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment tf2 to the Call Center (211) Contract

This 2^ Amendment to the Call Center (211) contract (hereinafter refeired to as 'Amendment #2") is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Granite United Way. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 22 Concord Street. 2* Floor. Manchester, NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 31.2018, (item #17), as amended on May 6,2020, (item #36), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amertded and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreemenl and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 29,2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Umitation. to read;

$1,347,156.

3. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3. to
read;

2,3. The Contractor shall coordinate social marketing campaigns, including but not limiled to
the Doorway public messaging campaign, that promote 2-1-1 NH with existing networks
that include, but are not limited to the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 3. Stale Opioid Response (SCR)
Grant Standards, to read:

3.1. The Contractor Shall establish formal Information sharing and referral agreements with the
Doorways, compliant with ail applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

3.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department with verifying thai client referrals to the
Doorways have been completed by the Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30 days
of the contract effective date.

3.4. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effeclive date to review contract implemenlation,

3.5. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementailon plans
associated with SOR-funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30) days

of contract effeclive date, unless the Department approves an aHernative timeline at the
request of the vendor.

3.5.1. If sen/ices are unable to be offered within the required timeframe, thej^^actor
Graniie Urdicd Way Amendment #2 Conifactof Iniiialsl
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shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department for approval to
outline anticipated service start dates.

3.5.2. The Diepartment reserves the right to terminate the contract and llquidale
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contract

effective date.

3.5.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Depahmenl to understand and compty
with all appropriate OHHS. Stale of NH, SAMHSA. and other Federal terms,
conditions, and requirement.

3.5.4. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may. not be
used, directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or

treatment using marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

3.5.4.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of cpiold use

disorder (OUD).

3.5.4.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or

organization that (>rovides or permits marijuana use forthe purposes
of treating substance use or mental disorders.

3.5.4.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and

memorandums of understarxiing (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

3.5.4.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.'

3.5.4.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the

Department within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3.5.5.' The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit C for grant terms and conditions including,
but not limited to:

3-5.5.1. Invoicing;

3.5.5.2. Funding restrictions; and

3.5.5.3. Billing

5. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 5. Reporting, by adding Subsection
5.2 to read:

5.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
SAMHSA,

6. Modify Exhibit A Amendment #i, Scope of Services. Section 6. Performance Measures by adding
Subsection 6.4 to read:

6.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Reduce the total SFY 2019 budget amount by $192,138, which is identified as unspent funding of
which $121,600 is being carried fonA/ard to fund the activities in this Agreement/foreSFY21

I ff
Granite United Way Amendment W Contraclorlnl|ialsl^^_^___
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(September 30, 2020 through December 31. 2020), as specified in Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2
NCE; and of which $70,538 is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SFY
21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) as specified, in part, in Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2
SORIt.

9! Modify Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 Budget (SPi'20), by reducing the tola! budget amount by
$158,305. which is identified as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities
in this Agreement for SFY21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) as specified, in part, in
Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2 SOR H.

10. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #2 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit 6-4 Amendment #2 SOR 11, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2 SOR II. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

r""'
I fV
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall t>e effective Septemt^er 29, 2020, upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/4/2021

Date

iUf*f

Name:

Title: Director

Granite United Way

2/3/2021

Date

-ee*»5Jge»d

Name:"'^yt"Ck Vutts
Title; President

Grenite United Way

SS-2019-BDAS-O4.CAaC-0i-A02
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, end
execution.

2/12/2021

Date Name;

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

athenne Finos

Tilte; Attorney

I heret>y certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Gronlte United Way Amendment
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788. FAIN H79TI0B1685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement;

2.1.The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR
200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3.Tha de minimis indirect Cost Rale of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200,414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
spedfied in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or or payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:'

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the clienl in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Slate by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
au8iorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensyfeithe Invoice is

GrSAiloU'riWdWay E>tvMeAm«ndnient02 Conbador Initials'
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall
be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of thi^ agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation Includes, but is not limited to;

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i){1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.,

5.1.3. invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Ccnslruclion or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees. ..

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference

grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the
FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to

exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

-  5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.
-M

Gnntie umtsd Way EdiiM 8 Amondmant 02 Coniractorl/iiUMi
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #2

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be suppiied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.6. information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

SCR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. the Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

g. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the Stale no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion dale specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #1 Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A Amendment

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts \within the price limitation and'adjusling encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

justified.

14. Audits

Gt*nllB UnBed Way Eidiibll B Amendmanl
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EXHIBIT 8 Amendment »2

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b. pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C ■ The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit,

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted In accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards,

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close Of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be-
required, at 3 minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed ' by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood arid agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Gr8ntt#ijnll«)W»y EnWbll B Amendnwnl« Conlfwaof Initials
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HVMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
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March 24. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oapartmenl ol Health end Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing eole source agreement with Granite United Way (Vendor #160015-B001»)
22 Concord Street, Second Roor. Manchesier. NH 03105. to provide substance use disorder
information and call referral .services through 2-1-1 NH, stalewtde. by increasing the price
limitation by $100.000 from $ 1.000,000 to S1.100.000, with ho change to the contract completion
date of September 29, 2020. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

This agreement was originaily approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
Octo&er31.2018(ltemi»17).

Funds to support this request are available in the follov/ing account for State Fiscal Years
2020 and 2021 with euthority to adjust amounts within the price limitation, and adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES,
STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

SFY
Class/.

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget -
Increaee/

(Decrease)
nn edified

Budget'

2019
102-

S00731

Co.nlracts for
Prog Svc

92057040 $500,000 ($121,600) $378,400

2020
102-

500731

Cdntracls for

Prog Svc
920S7040 $500,000 $100,000"  $600,000

2021
102-

500731

Conlracts for

Prog Svc
82057040 SO $121,600 $121,600

Total $1,000,000 • $100-000 $1,100,000
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EXPLANATION

The oritfnal contract is sole source because the Deparvnent utili26s 2-1-1 NH as Its •
public-Tacing system to access Intofmatlon end service referrals for substance use disorder
services.

The purpose of this request is to enhance end increase substance use disorder
Information and referral services through 2-1-1 NH. a telephonic service thai prwides
confidential infotmallon about substance use disorder support services, and referrals for
individuals and their families statewide.

This request, if approved, will enhance current services by;

• Providing emergency transportation and emergency sheltering options Jo
Doorway clients when H Is deemed that no other options for these services exist,

• Adding a Community Liaison Specialist (40% FTE) to connect individuals to
supportive services related to SLJD in their region.

• Providing funds to purchase "dosed loop referral* software.

Approximately' iO.OOO individuals will be served from iviay 6, 2020 through September
29.2020.

Granite United Way assists clients with identifying service rreeds and provides referrals
to Doorways and other human services providers; The Contractor also participates In quality

, monitoring and improvement activities to ensure services provided meet Department standards.
Individuals who call 2-1-1 NH seeking information or substance use disorder serwce

access are referred to current resources In their community end, when appropriate, directly
connected to an on-cali clinician associated with the Slate's newly created Doorways services.

Services provided through 2-1 -1 NH are multilingual and available twenty-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. As marketing and outreach for Stale Opioid Response
initiatives increases, the Oapartment anticipates more capacity for 2-1-1 NH services will be
needed to address Increased call volume, especially as additional housing services becorr>e
availat^e. If this request is approved, 2-1-1 NH call center services will be enhanced, to include
assistance with locating transportation for eigible clients; providing assistance for clients who
are in need of emergency shelter; end working with the Department to develop a respite shelter
voucher policy for Doorway clients and their families.

The above outlined approach is part of the State s accepted proposal to the Substance,
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opio'id Response (SOR)
grant opportunity. With this funding opportunity, the Department is using evidence-based
methods to expand treatment, recovery and prevention senrices for individuals with opioid use
disorder in New Hampshire.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the contract.and the delivery of services
using the following performance measures

• The percentage of callers who received a busy tone when they call.
• The average amount of time callers wait in cell queues before an agent responds.
• The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.
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• The average amount of time forthe call to be answered.

Should the Governof and Executive Council not authorue this requasl. individuals may
have limited infonnalion about services that are available for individuals wtto have substance
use disorders, whicli may result in potential delays in access to care.

' Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. CFDA #93.788 FAIN #H78TI081685.
In the event that Uie Feberoi Funds t>dcome no longer evellable. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

Lori a: Shibinette'

Commissioner

Tht Orpo^OHtnl 9/ HfotUi oii<f S/fvirtf'MtWO/i u eo^ifwfiiu'o Aitf/o«rifin
lA cpperUfaio'tt /o** ci</uai CjxkAicw Acs'M oetf
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hezco Dt-Concord. NH 03301

Fax; 6a3-27l-l316 TDOAccu5;l-800-73S-29M
. wtvw.nh.gov/doit

DcnIiCoulct

Commijsiontr

April 3. 2020

Lori A. Shibirieiie, Commissioner

Depanmeni of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pieaseni Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinciie:

This lelier reprrscnts formal noiificaiion that the Departmcni oflnrormfllton Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's requcsi to eiiier into o sole source comraci omendmeni with Granite United
Way, (Vendor# 202684-B001) of Manchesier. New Hampshire 03I0S as described below and referenced
asOolTNo. 2019-0j3A.

The 'purpose of this amendment is io enhance and icKrease substance use disorde'r
informalion and.referral services through the 2-l-i NH siaiewide leltphonic service. Thc-
call center services will be enhanced lo incli<dc assistance with locating trensportaiion for
eligible clients, providing assistance for clients who arc in need of emergency shelter, and
working with DHHS 10 develop a respite shelter voucher policy for Doorway clients and
their families.

This amendment will increase the conirtci amount by SlOO.OOO from Sl.000.000 to
SI,100,000, with no change to (he contract completion date, and shall become effective
upon the date of Coverrwr and Executive Council approval through September 29,2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Depanmeni of Health and Human Services'
submission to (he Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Dcnls.GouIei

DO/ik

DolT«0l9-0S3A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

'lAoovolrve rechnolog/es Today/or NewNompshlre'i romorrow'
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N««w Hampshire DepartmenI of Health and Human Services
Call Center (2i1)

State pt Ne*< Hampshire
OepSfWienl of Hcafth and Human Servlcoe

Amendment flUe the Call Cenier (211) Centraci

This 1- Amendment to the Cad Center (211) contract
and between the Stale of New Hampshire. Oeparttneni of Health and Human
referred to ai Uie -State- or -Departmonf) and Granile Umled. Wey (hweinafter ".I'l®Conlrectof-). enonproftwtlhBplaceoftuslfWasol 22 Concord Sheet, 2r>d Floor. Manchester NH D310S.
WHEREAS, pureiianl to ar* ogreement (the •ContracT) approved b^e Oove^r
onOctober3l 2018 (ItemPIT), the Contractor agreed to performoertairt services based upon IMterms
and cor^ilions specified In the Comract as amended and In consBaraPon of certain sums specified, and
WHER^S. the State end the (ionlrecior txewe agreed to make changes to the scope of wortr. payment
schedules or terms end conditions of the contract, end

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General ProvtsiorB, Paragraph 18, the Contract may ̂  amended
upon written egreement of the parties and epproval from the Governor and Executive Counol, and
WHEREAS, the portba agree to tncrease the price (Imitation end modify the scope of Mfvlcee to support
continued deOvery of these eervtces; and

WHEREAS, ell terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments nol inconsistent wW this
Amendment at remain tn fuQ force and eftect; and

NOW THEREFORE. In censWeratJonoftheforegolna andlhemubiBlcoverufttsand conditions contained
In the Contrad end set forth hereln. the parties hereto agree to emend as folleMrs; ̂

1 Form P.37. Geiwral Provisions. Bock 1.6. Prtco Lhnltarion. to read:
$1.100.(X)0.

2. Delete Exftibii A. Scope of Services in Its enlirety and replace wllh ExWWI A Amendment #1. Scope
of Services

3. Add EBiibli B-1 Amendment Pt.

4. Add Exfribit 6-2 Amendment dl

7>)e nst ofthis ptgo left rnfanriona^ Mok.

OranlttUr^iedWer Am«rt»antOt ConVidortnHbb. ̂
SS^ie-eOAS-OSC^lC-AOi PegeiefS ^*-'*1 '



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7537AEDD-B6A9-4C03-AAEA-170e42CFB0A5

OocuSign Envelope ID. 08FF2BS641B(>4D4I}-^OI>67F261C6CD9B

Oocu5l9nEnMlopelD:ElCl00E104E4-4F7C-98FE-S7E«39833F1B

New Hampshire Oep.eflmeni of Health and Human Services
Cell Center (211)

This amendmenl ihsB t>e efleclwe upon Ihe dale of Govemet and EaecutWe Council epprovei.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties Mve aet iheii hands as of the dale wjinen Bdow,

Slaia of New Hampshire
Oepirtmeni of Heal'h and Human Servfeat.

7./-3^l-ao
Date

^ I
Name; Kalis 8. Fox
Tills: Oiroctor

Granite Unil

/z.<^ey
Dsie

AcXftowladgemenl o) Coniracior'a sfsnaiure:

Way

mK m.Nami k
Tiliec

Presiie/t^

fikijJUt^AJiujL. CounNol on%on£t'/7X^Jd. betwcthe .
undersigned offlcdr. personally appeared the peraonSdenliflad otreciiy aoova, or seUsladorliy proven to
be Ihe porson vmoso name is signed above, and artrowiedgDd that sAe execulod Ihis doojmonl in the
capadty indicaied above.

^gn^m of Notary Public or Justice of the Paafs

Name end Tliio ol fiotary or Justice of Ihe Peace'

My Commission Ei^ires;

KrtDOCDl A eCAMLCN
I:U-T; IXMc. toe itBiwfto

My CoRraiislcn Expbaa tune 24.2030

CaNu urtM w>}

ss-2oip-eDAa«4CALic Pse*7e'3
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The p«tedli>9 Anienonerl. ha^ng tan by ofTco. h .pprcv«» os <o fcm.. •utol.nce. antf
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^iji0}A<S7re>-
ftle

IaZZL

\ hdfoby certify Ihftt the forepoing Amendment wa» apfnvtd by the Govemw end Ewcwlive Council ol
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeimg ort ;

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Nemo;

.Tlllo:

GnnMUrAedWty

6S-20>»«)ASO4-CALlC

T

Amendrwiat

Pege)ol3

U  II I I . I 11 I I
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Exhibil A Amendment 01

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services '
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed descripiion of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to iheir programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contraci effective
dale.

1.2. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future legislative action by (he hfew
Hampsttire General Court or federal or slate court orders may have an impact on the
Services descrit>ed herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure reguiremenis under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance

lh,erewllh.

1.3. Notwithstanding any oiner provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

conllnue after September 30. 2020, and Ihe Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after September 30. 2020, unless and until an

appropriation (orihese services has been received from Ihe slate legislature and funds
encumbered for the SPf 2020-2021 and SPY 2022-2023 biennia.

1.A. For Ihe purposes of this contraci. Granite United Way shall be identified as a
Eubrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. e( ssg.

t

2: Scope of Work
2.1. .The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder information and referral services

through 2-1-1 NH statewide. Services shal! Include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring all calls received are answered by a properly .trained Information and
Referral specialist according to training requirements In Subsection 4.2.

2.1.2. Providing confidential and multilingual services bArenty-four (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week.

2.1.3. Identifying information and service needs related 10 the caliefs substance use
disorder or Ihe substance use disorder of a family memtter, signincant other, friend,
or concerned parly.

2.1.4. Assessing callers for additional needs and providing appropriate resources based
on eligibility including, but not limited to:

2.1.4.1. Housing

2.1.4.2. Mental health services

2.1.4.3. Social supports

2.1.3. Contacting emergency services, depending on the nature of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller. Including, but not limited to:

CniAelMeOWfy EtfOKAAmcndmenivi Cermoo> InlUaU.

SS-JOIMOASOA^AltC-AOJ PigtldS Oile.3l2£iP^'^
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EaMbtt A Amoncfment 01

,2.1.5.1. Directing callers to 911 U a ciieni is in immineni danger or there is an
emergency.

• 2.1.5.2. irihe client is unable or unwilUrig to call 911, the Contractor shall contact
emergency services.

2.1.6. Assisting clients who are solely seeking referral Information to appropriate
treatment and other resources in the client's service area.

2.1.7. Directly transferring dients who have e non-emergency need and are seeking
assistance with accessing treatment services to the Department's Regional
Doonvays for substance use disorder services (Doorways), based on the client's
location, when appropriate'

2.2. The Contractor shall update its referral resource database weekly (or substance use
disorder (SUD) serv'iccs and other human and social services that aid in indiv'tduals i/i
achlewng and maintaining recovery.

2.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to-SUD and health and human
' service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update data as

appropriate.

2.3. The Contractor shall coordinate sodal marketing campa^ns with existing networks to
promote 2-1-1 NH including, but not limited to. the Doorway pubkc messaging,
campaign. Existing networks include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. ifttegreted Delivery Networks (IONS)

2.3.2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

2.4. The Contractor shall participate in all quality compliance, monitoring, and ImprdvemenI
activities requested by the Department which will include, but is not limited to.

2.4.1. Demonstraled compliance with guidelines from the Alliance ot Infotmatton and
Referral Systems (AIRS) for quality control and evaluatioa

2.4.2. Partidpafion in electronic and iivperson call record reviews.

'2.4.3. Pariicipatioh in site visits.

2.5. The Contractor shall participate in training and technical assistance activities as
directed by the Department.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder advenced Information and
referral services during the hours of 5 pm through 8 am to elevate an indivlduars
'transportation and shelter crisis.'when no other payer source is available, by:

2.6.1. Providing transportation to and from recovery-related medical aw>oi,ntments.
treatment programs, and other locatiorts as identified and- recommended, by

, Doorway professional staff to assist the eligible client with recovery:

2.6.2. Providing emergency shelter to assist individuals in need of respite shelter w^ile
awaiting treatment and recovery services. The Contractor shall:

CnNitUii>MWfy EMMAAmenlinfnifl ' Contr*ct«'ini6<i>.

SS-JOlsaOAS-tH-CAUC-API P«tt2olS
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Exhibit A Amandment B1

2.6.2.1. Collaborate with the Department on a respite shelter voucher policy and
related procedures to determine eligibility for respite shelter vouchers
based on criteria that include bui are not limited to confirming an individual
is; • , . 1

2.6.2.1.1. A Doorway client/family;

2.6.2.1.2. In need of respite shelter while awaiting treatment and recovery
services: and

•  2.6.2.1.3. in need of obtaining financial assistance to access short-term,
temporary shelter.

2.6.3. Com^rfying with all the oilier activities outlined in Exhibit A

2.6.4. Purchasing software, subject to review and approval by lhe Department-that will
atiow the Contractor to communicate and share personal client information with .
the Department's Doorways contractors and the Departmehfe 'afterhours
Doorways contractor in order to coordinate transportation and e'mergency shelter
services. The software shall include, but is not limited to:

2.6.4.1. A method to confirm that each referral to a Doorways contractor is received
and acknowledged

2.6.4.2. A method to ensure that notice is returned to the inftialing party for each
received referral.

2.6.4.3. Confidentiality of client personal identifiable information

'2.6.5. Hiring additional staff equivaleni to a minimum of .5 FTEs

2.6.6. Training staff on advance information and referral services, which must include,
but is not limited to:

-2.6.6.1. New processes and procedures lor receiving and responding to these calls

2.6.6.2.' Receiving, collecting and ensuring secure use and protection of personal
identifiable information and any confidential information, including 42CRF
Part 2. and personal health information.

2.6.6.3. Using new software

3. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral agreements with

the Doorways, compliant with all applicable confidenliality law$. including 42 CFR Part

2- .

3.2. The Contractor shall assist Ihe Depanmeni with verifying that client referrals to (he
Doorways have been completed by the Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide (he Department with timelines and impiementalion plans
associated with SOR-furKied activities to ensure services are in place within thirt^30)

Cnnbe U<do4 Wty fUilbli A A/nendmani f i ConUieior Ini^oia a .
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Exhibit A Amandmant 01

days of coniract elledive date, unless the Department approves an alternative timeline
at the-fequesl of the vendor.

3.3.1. if services are unable to be offered within the required limeframe. the Conirador
shall submit an updated impiementalion plan to the Department for approval to
outline anticipated service start dates.

3.3-2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate unspent
funds if services are nol in place within ninety (90) days of contract effective dale.

4, Staffing

4.1. Ttie Contractor shall submit a staffing and recruitment plan to the Department within
(7) seven days of contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all call center staff are properly trained In how to
assist individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties. Training topics
shall include, bul not be limited to

4.2.1. Addiction 101.

4.2.2. Eliminating stigma.

- 4.2.3. Safe language practices.

4.2.4. Safeguarding the confidentiality and lawful re-disctosure of client/caller substance
use disorder and other confidential information.

4.2.5. Other topics identified by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of (1) one full-time staff person to update the
Contractor's database weekly for SUO services end other human and social services

that aid in individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery.

4.31. The Contractor shall conduct ongoing outreach to SUD and healih'and human
service providers to ensure real-time accuracy of resources and update data as
appropriate.

S. Reporting
5.1. The Contractor shall provide de-identified, aggregate monthly web based reports by

the 20'" of the month following the reporting month. The reports shall include, but not
be limited to:

5.1,1, Number of phone calls received relative to SUD, including Ihe average number of
calls each month.

5. i ,2. Nature of each phone call.

5.1.3. Number of callers referred from Ihe call center tine to Doorways.

5.1.4. Number of callers directly transferred to Doorways.

5.1.5. Number of callers referred Irom the call center line to non-Doorway servi^j

Gnnl* Untied Wtr 6*hbliAXmef»dmem#t Camnaot iniiiiw -

88.«..Mt>ASCe.CAU.C-A01 P.je«e»S .l(l7(-2,0?^
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5.1.6. Number ol callers referred from the call cenier line lonon-SUD services
5.1.7. Average amount of time callers wait-in cell queues before an agent responds.
5.1.8. Perceniageof total callers who hang up before reacNng an agent

5.1.9. Average amount of time it takes for the call to be answered.
5.1.10. Average emouni of time an agent spends speaking with the caller, including hold

lime.

5.1.11. Percentage olcalters that received a busy tone when they can.

5.1.12.-Call cenier caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional).

5.1.13. Caller demographics and information when available including, but not limited to.
5.1.13.1. Substance of choice.

5.1.13.2. Mousing issues.

5.1.1.3.3. Criminal Justice Issues.

■ 5.1.13.4. Employment issues.

5.1.14.Callertocation.

5.1.15. Emergency/Imminent Risk Involvement/Level of Urgency.

5.1.16. Services soughi.

5.1.17. Outcome ol each phone can including, but not limited to:

5.1.17.1. Referrals to Doorway for services and clinical evaluation.

5.1.17.2. information and resources provided via the phone.

6. Perforniance Measures
5 1 The Contractor shall ensure thai 100% of individuals in need of substance use services

who remain on the phone during the transfer of the cell are directly transferred to their
Regional Doorway.

8.2. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of individuals who call 2-1-1 NH for SUO
service information or referral will speak to a 2-1-1 staff member on the first call.

6.3. The Contractor shall gather baseline data from January 1,2019- September 30,2018
on the areas fisted below.

6.3.1. The percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

6.3.2. The average amouni ol lime calters wait in call queues before an agent responds.

6.3.3- The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching an agent.

6.3.4. The average amount of lime it lakes for the call to be answered.

GnrleUfditdWty EihWi A Amenameni 11 Cw»U»do'>niilil»_
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state of new HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOU B£HA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUC.AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

IPS PLCaSaNT street, concord. HH 0)301
«01-)ll4n0 l-tOO-l)l-})4SCii.«13l

F(a:«0]-)7j4IOS TDDAccnt; l-IOO-T)S-}RM .
'  w«t».OIihi.nh.|ev

n V :

October 10.2016

Hi# Excellency. Goverr^or Chrisiopher T, Sununu.,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depertrriant of Health and Human Services, Division lor Behavioral Heallh,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, lo enter into a solo source egreemenl with Granile United Way.
Vendor #160015-B00ifl. 22 Concord Sireet. Second Floor. Manchester. New Hampshire 03105. in an
amount not to exceed $1,000,000, to provide substance use disorder Information end call referral
services ttirough 2-l i NH biatewide, effective upon date of Governor and Executive Council approve,
through 2020,

Funds are available in the iollowing accounts) for Stale Fiscal Veer (SFY) 2019. end ere
aniicipaled lo be available in SFY 2020. upon irie availability arid continued appropriation of funds in

.the future operating budgets, with auihorlty lo adjust emounls within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justiried. without
approval from Governor and Executive Council. ^

05-95 92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUf«1AN SVS.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amoufil

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contrecls for Prog.Svc TBD $500,000

SFY 2020 102-,500731 Contracls for Prog Svc TBD $500,000

Total $1,000,000

EXPLANATION

This requesi is sole source because the Depanmeni is seeking lo utilize 2-1-1 NH to
restructure iis public-facing system for access to Infomnation and service referrats tor subsiance use
disorder services. Presently, the Department funds a separate 1-800 number for addiction hoUine calls
and the Department is seeking lo re-align this eervice information and access into a streamlined
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epproach, as part of the Stale Opioid Resporise grant. Granite United Way was selected as the sole
source contractor given its curreril operation of the 2-l'l NH number for multiple other services. This
streamlined" approach will eliminate duplication of having multiple phone numbers, by adjusting and
transferring the scope of the addiction tioUine calls into 2-1-1 NH, Additionally, aligning substance use
service information end access with 2-1-1 allows for the whole person's needs to be met when they
call, given.ihe muHiple resources 2-1-1 has for referrals through other related contracts (e.g: Homeless
and Housing, ServiceLink. etc.). individuals who cell 2-1-1 seeking information or substance use
disorder service access will be connected to up-lo-dale resources in their community end when
appropriate, directly connected to an on-call clinician associated with the Stale's 'newly created
Regional Hubs for Substance Use Disorder services, to begin addressing their needs:

Funds In this agreement vwll be used to provide substance use disorder Intormation and referral
servicas through 2-1-1 NH statewide, a telephonic service ihai provides conftdentiai and rriuliilingual
services twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days per week. Granite United Way will assist clients
with identifying service needs end by providing rslerra'ts to the Regional Hubs or other human service
providers as a caller's needs ere identified. Granite United Way will also participate in quality
compliance, monitoring, and improvement activities to ensure that services provided meet Deparlment
standards."

The above outlined approach is part of ihe State's accepted proposal to the Substance Abuse
end Mental Health Services Administraiiof) (SAMHSA) Stale Opioid Response (SOR) grant opportunity.

' With this funding opportunity, New Hampshire win use'evidence-based methods to expand Ireaiment.
recovery and prevention sennces to individuals with CUD in NH, and the use of 2-1 -1 NH as the public-
facing phone number for services is critical to the Oepertmeni's plan.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, egreemeril
of (he parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no .services shall cor»tinue
afler June 30. 2019, and the Department shall nol be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019, unless and uniil additional Federal resources are allocated for this purpose and an
appropriation for these services has been received from the stale legislature and funds encumbered for
the SPY 2020-2021.

Should Governor end Executive Council nol euthorize this Request, individuals in NH will have
limited information about where to seek information or services for substance use disorder end have
potential delays in access lo cere.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Ihe Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Adminislralion. CFDA 093.786 FAIN #H79Tl081685.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds, will nol be
requested to support this prograrn.
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His Excetlertcy. Governor Cnrlslopher T. Sununu
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Respectfully submitted.

Kaija S. Pox
Director

Approved b

WfreyA. rirey A. Meyers

Commissioner

77m Dtfiorlmtnl «l lltoUti and Hiiman &rvicef'MjlfiOi iiMjoin conmii/nirifiofid /bniilin '
■I i/nviiliHgepportimitiu for tili.t'ii It ocftifve IimIiM niid ivltiK'>ll*nt*.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATiON TECHNOLOGY

27 Huen Ot., Contord. NH 03301

F»*; 6CO-271-lSlft TDO Acce»»r 1 •800.735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

OeRd Coitlei
Coixmistiemr

October 16,201B

Jeffrey A. Meyers, CommiMioner
Depsrrmei^t of Health and Humbn Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 0)301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal noiificatiorr that the Department of Inrormatiort Technology (OolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter irtio a sole'source contract with Crenile United Way, (Vendor
e 2026!4-B00l> of Manchester, New Hampshire OJIoS as described below artd referenced as DolT No.
2019-053.

This contract will provide suppon for the transition of the currertt Addiction Hotline
number and ongoing operations of a 29/7 cell center through 2-1 •! NH, to ensure thai
individuals seeking inforfnation or help wit i substance use disorder have access to
informalion and service referral.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed S).000,000 and shall become effective upon
the date of Governor and Eseeuiive Council afiprova! through September 29,2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Depanmeni of Health and Huntan Services
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

OC/ik/ck

DolTff20l9-053

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, OolT

Denis Coulei

•innovative Technologies roday/pf NCivHompifir/c's Tomorrow'
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Subjccl: Cell f71 IUS^70 lO.BOASA«.CAl.Ln
fORM NUMBER f-3T(v(r*len S/8/IS)

Watiee: Thi* igretmeni ind ill of itt enichmtnii thill becont public upon tubmitlion 10 Covcmor and
Cxecviivt Council forappiovt). Any infomaiionihet iipnvaie.confidcniiel orproprieia/y muti
t* dc.arly identified loihc agency end OBrtedtoinwriilngprioMoiignlngiht tontwi.

ACReCMENT

TheSuicerNcvrHampjhirtandiheContnciorhcrebymuiually agree u rotlowe;

CCNEIULPflOVISIONS

_L lOENTiriCATION.
I.I Siace Agency Name
NH Otpvtmeni of Heshh and Human Scrvicet

1.2 State Agency Addtcii 'y
129 Pteuani Street

Concord, NH 03}0i-)t57

1.) Coniracioi Name

Crmniie United Way
1.4 CcMraeior Addrcu

22 Concord Street, 2nd Floer'
POBo.t2lt

Manchester KK 03105'

1.5 Conuacior Phone

Number

60J-42I.6I93

1.6 Account NuiTtber

8HS:(l5-95-42.a2)OIO-79}|-
•0]-5000l

1.7 Completion Date

9/29/2020

1.1 Price Limitation -

S 1.000.000

).9 ConimetingOnicer for Suie Agency
Nathan 0. White

Oireetorof Contraeu and Procurement

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-27(9631

I.M _,ffl5ntnjct^ Signature ^ / 1.12 biunc and Title ofContracior Signatory

I.lj/Acbnowledgemeni: State of /VW /><r«y^-v County of

k£j^, before the uttdertigned efrieer.pefjonallyoppeofedihe person identified in block 1.12. o'taiiifaciorily
proven to be the person whose ntme is signed in block. 1.11, and acknowledged thai s/h< executed this documcJM in the eapaeliy
indicatcdinblock 1.1}.

I.I 3.1 Signature of Noiuy Public or fusiice of the Peace
A. SCAPfLOH

rstin 2252020
1.0.2 NameandTitleofNoiaryo'iusnceofihePeace

V<-rC<ra.«,«0
I.M ' State Agency Signature I.l504»me and.TlilcofStdie Agency Signatory . "

I. It Approval by the N.H. Deptnnieni of Adminisiraiion. Division of Person?tatl/^foppr/re&fc.|

By: Olrector, On:

\.\1 Approval by the Anorncy General (Form,Substance and Execution) fi/<^p/>e0t/(.3

i.ll Approval by the Govcrrx)/end ExccuiiveCouncil (7/oppf/rsb/«)

By; ' On;

Page I of4
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J. EMPtOVMEWTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVlCESTO
BE performed] The Sieie orNcwHempihitt, tain|
through the tgeney tdcniificd in block I.I ("Siiie"), en|«|ci
eontreeior idcnufied In block 1.3 ("Contncior'') lo peribrm,
tndihcConirscioc thtllperform, iht worker iileofgoode.or
boih, idcnitfjcd end more pinieuUrly dncnbcd in (he iiuehed
EXHIBIT A which ii incorpenled herein by reference
CServiter).

y CFfECTIVE OATE/COMPtETION OF SERVICES.
. 3.1 Norwiihiiending eny provision ofihitAgreenwmio the
conirvy, andtubjeci >o iht ipprovolorihe Governor end
executive CoutKll of the Sitie of New Kampthire, if
ippliuble, Ihii Agreemcm, end III obligeiiont ofthe paniei
hirrcunder, shill become elTeciive on ihe d*i< the Governor
end Execuiive Council ipprove Ihls Agreement ts indietird in

. block 1.11, uftlcei no such approval is rtouired, in which cue
the Agrecmeni shall become effctiive on the daic ihc
Agreement is sigrtcd by the Sitic Agency u shown in block
I.U ("EITesiivc Date").

3.2 IfiheConirociorcemmencesihe Services prior to (he
Effective Dole, all Services performed by Ihe Connclor prior
(oihe Effeclivc'Diie shall be perfomed ei the sole risk of ihe
Conirocior. and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become efrctiive, the Suit shell have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limiielion. any obligation to pay
ehe Contractor far any costs incurred or Services perfomed
Conirtcior must complete all Services by the Completion Date
speeified in block 1.7.

4. CONOITIOHAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agiccmeni to the
coninry, all obligations of the State hercui^er. including,
without limitation, Ihc continuance of payments hcrcunder, are
contingent upon the availabiliiy end continued eppropriaiion
of Funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payment! hcrcunder in excess of Such Bvailebie appropriated -
funds, in the event of a reduction or lerminaiion of

appropriated ̂ nds, (he Static shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds btcome available, if ever, and shall
have (he right lo icrminale (his Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor noiiec of (ueh lerminaiion. The Slate '
shall not be required to intofcr funds from ony other account
to the Account identified In block 1.6 in the event Funds in thai

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICe/FRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

S. I The eonirael price; method of paymcnl, ond terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which Is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State ofthe coniraet price shall be the
only ond ihe complete ralmbursemem lo the Comrecior for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurrtd by the Contractor in the
pcrformence hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compcnsiiion to (he Contraeior for the Services. The State
(hall have no liability to the Ceniraetor ethei than the contract
price.

5 3 The State rcKrvcs the right to offset from any amounts
Olhcrvtisc payable to the Contractor under (his Agrecmeni
(hose liquidated amouru required or permined by KH. RSa
' t0:7 ihrough RSA tO:7-cor any other provision of law,

5.4 Noiwithsionding any provision in this Agreement lo the
contrary, trtd noiwitkHanding unexpected circurnsnrscci. in
no even) shall the total of all payments suthoriud, or actually
made hcrcunder, exceed Ihe Priee Umiiation set forth in block
1.1.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EOUaC EMPLOVMEIYT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In oonneclion with Ihe performanec ofthe Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all siaiuica, liwi. regulations,
andoidtri of federal, stale, county or rnunlcipil authorities
' which impose any obligation or dury upon (he'Contraeior,
including, but not limited (0, civil rights and equal opportunity
iawa. This may include the rtquircmcni to uliliu auxiliary
aids and icrvices to ensure that persons with eommunicaiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and Speech, can
communicate with, receive infpt^iion from, and convey
information lo Ihe Conirocior. In eddition, (he Contraeior
ihall eomply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the lem of this Agreemeni, the Contractor shall
not diicriminaie against cmploycesor applicants For
employment because of rocc, color, religion, creed, age, sex.

handicap, sexual orieniaiion. or national origin end will take
afTtnnatlvticiion to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If (his Agree mem Is funded in any part by ntonies ofthe
United Slates, the Conuactor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order-No 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opporiuniry"). as supplemented by the

regulaiiontofihc United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R.Pan 60]. and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
OS the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to,
permit the State or United States access to luiyof the

Contractor's books, records and aceounis for the purpose of
asce/iainingcompliance with aJi rules,'rcgulaliotu and Otden,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of(his Agrecmeni.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at in own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants ihei ell personnel engaged in the Services thall.bc
qualiFicd le perform the Scrviees. and shall be properly
licensed andoiherwiic auihoriied to do SO under all opplicsble
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise amhorited in writing, during Iht term oF
this Agreement, and For o period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Conlrbcior shall not hirt,
and shall not permit any lubconirocior or other person, firm or
corporation uriih whom it is engaged in a combined effon to
perform the Services to hire, ony person who Is a Stale
employee or ofTicial, who Is-miieriilly involved in the
procurement, odministiaiionoi performance ofthis

Pftge2or4
Conlractor Iniliels

Date
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Agrctmenl. Thit proviiion ihill lurvivt lermintiion of thii
Aireement.
73 Th( ConinciingOfficer iptcificdinblock 1.9, or Ml'or
her tucctuor. (Atll be ibe Suie's rcpretenuiive. (rt ihc evtni
ofiny tfiipute conctrTiingihe inierpivuiion ofihii Agrtemeai,
t)t(Conire(iir)|Ofric«t'ide<ij'on thtUbermtl foriheSuie.

«. EVENT Of OEFAULT/RCMCDIES.
I.t Atvy one or tnortofibe follovnng ecu or omiisionioflbe
Conirsctor ibtll conxituietACvcni oftferiuli hmunder
(~Eve(H orOersulf);
(.1.1 failure 10 perforrn ihe Servieci itiitftoerilyoron
•chedule;

(.1.2 failure lo wbm<(any ttporiiequirtdhcrtvndcr; ond/or
(.1.1 failure lo pcifbimony other covtnaftl. lennor condilron
orihisAgreemeRi.
1.2 Uponiheoccuirenceefajty Eveflt.ofOerauli. the State
may lake any one. or more, or all, of ihe following aciiou:
(.2.1 give the ContrKior a wrinen notice iptti^ing the Event
efOerauli artd requiring it to be remedied within, in the
abience of a gruicr or Iciecr tpceiricaiion of time, ihitiy (30)
days from the daie'of the r>oiiee; and if (he Event of Default is
not timely remedied, (crmirtEie this Agrcemeni. efTceiive two
(2) day! after giving the Coniraeior notice of tennlnition:

. (.2.2 give Ihe Comrocior a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending ell payments (O be'made under this
Agytemeni artd ordering that the portion ofihecomrset price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period ftom the date of such notice until svch time as Ihe State
determines (hat the Cortiractdr hkscurcd the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
(.2.) set off egtlnii arty other obligations the Stale may Owe to
the Contractor any damages the State supers by reason of any
Event of Default: arttl/or
(.2.4 rrcai the Agrtemeni as breached and pursue anyef its
remedies at low or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS«:ONFIO£f4TIALlTVf
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall meart eh
information and things developed or obtained durir^ the
perfomanceof. or eequired or developed by reason of. this
Agreemerti. including but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, survey's, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordiitgs, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic represemaiions, computer programs, computer
priniouis. notes, lenem. memoranda, papers, and documents,
•II whether frnlshed or unrinijhed.

9.2 All dam and any property which has been received from -
the State or purchated with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agrtemeni. shall be the property of the Sine, and
shall be returned (o the State upon demand or upon
lerminiiion of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confideniitliiyordata shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Ditcbsure ofdau
requires prior wiinen appiovil of the State.

Pege 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of tAUriyiemitrtaiiOA Of
iMi Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Serviees.ihe Contncior shall deliver to the Contrtcting
Officer, not later than fiflecn (13) days after the date of .
icminaiian, a report ("Termination Report'')deieribing in
detail all Services performed, and the eontrics price ctmed.lo
artd including the dale of termination. The form; subject
maner, comcni, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be ideniical to those of any Final Repot
described in the anaehed EXHIBIT A.

11.C0ffrRACT0R'SRCLATI0NT6THESTA"re. In
the performance of this Agreement the Conlmelor is in all
rctpecti an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Controcior nor any of lu
ofTieen, empbyecs, agents or membcn shall have authority to
bind the State o> receive any benefits, worVeri' eompensaiion
or other emoluments provided by the State to its cmployeei.

12.ASSICNM£ffT/0EUCATI0N/SUBC0ffTRACTS.

The Contractor shell not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agrtemeni without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the Stale. None of the Services lhallbe '
subcontracted by the Coniricior without the prior wrinen
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Coiuraclor shell defend,
indcmni^ and hold harmleis the State, its ofTcers and
cmpbyeet, fiom and egainit any and all losses sufTmdby the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities orpcnsliici asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on bchalfof any person, on oeeouni of,
based or resulting fiem, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the aeisoromisiioni of the
Conirtcior. Noiwiihsionding the foregoing, nothing herein
oonuined shall be deemed to const ituie a waiver of ihe

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity it hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 thiJI
survive Ihe tcrmintiion of this Agreement.

H. INSURANCE

14.1 The Contractor shell, at its sole expense, obtain and
mainiiin In force, and aholl requite any subconiraeior or
assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the folbwing
tnsuntncc:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, dcoih or properry damage, in amounts
of not leu than S I.OOO.OOOpcr occusrenee and S2,000,000
sggregile; and
14.1.2 special cause of bit eoverige form covering ell
peopeny subject to tubparsgriph 9.2 herein, in en emouru not'
lessthanlOHof the whole eeplaeefflcni vBlue of the propeny.
14.2 The policies detciibetl in subpa/agra^ 14.1 herein shall '
be on policy forms ond endonements approved for use ifi the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Oepirtrrseni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In the Stale of New
Hampshire.

Contrector Inttials i '

Dale
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U.3 Th« Conimeiorjhill Fumiih lo ihe Coniriciing OfTic*'
i4eniir>(d in block t .9. or hit or h«r lucuuor,« c«nirictie($)
efintumncc Tor oil iniunnct (tqvirtd under ihit AgRcmcni.
Contienor Iha'l |i»Fumiih ipiht Ccnirwimg OfTrtcr
idtniifitd in block t .9. or hit Of htr tvccctior, ccnifiteiKt) of
injitrencc for ill rtn*w»l(t) of ioiufwce required undcnbit
Agrtemcni no leer ihin ihiny (}8)da)i prior (oibt cipireiion
d*ieo(ea<hofiheir»wrmnc« policies. T>i« «rtif(c»ic(t) of
iiMwrwe end wy renewe]! thereof thiH be eneched end ut
ineorporeied herein by reference. EBehcenificete^t) of
■nsurenee ihall coniei/v i clauU requiring ihe Iniurtr IS
provide the Contioeiing OfTieer idtmiried in block I 9. or hit
or her tuuettor, no ieit ihtn thirty (JO) deyi prior wriitcn •
notice of cnncelliiieno' modihention of the polity.

. IS. WORKCRS'COMPENSATION.
13.1 6y ilgnictgthil egreerhent, the Connoeior tgrtct.
ceniriet end werrenu thii the Comrocior it in coiTtpiianec with
or exempt from, the rtquiremenu ofN.H. RSA.thspler Jll -A
C'WcriifS'CoirptnjfDion ~).
IS.} To the eintftf the Conrrecior it ivbjeci lo the
requiremenu of N.H. RSA chepitr 211 -A. ConirKior the!! '
miinteln, end require eny tubeoftireclor or eitignee to iccute
end meinisirt. piyrnent of Workert' Compenuiion in
conneci'ort with etiiviiiet utilch the person propoKt to
urtdertekc p.ursuem loihit Agrtemtnl. Contrecior thill
fumith the CoiWPCiingOflieer idettiified in block 1.9, or hit
or her fucceiior, proofof Wortert' Compentatien in the
mtnner detcribed in N.H. RSA Chtpier 21 t-A end my
spplicelile rtnewel(i) thereof, which thsll be anschtd md ire
incorpomed hertir) by rtfert'tKC. The Suie thill not be
reipotuible forptymeniofiny Workers' Compentiiion
premiumt or for nny other elsim 0i benefit for Coniretiot, or
my lubeonirocior 01 employeeof Coniroeior.-which might
irtK under ippliceble Suit ofNew Himpshtrc Wofkcrs

' Compentiiion liws in connection with the pcrfermtnec of the
Servieet under ihil Agreement.

Id. WAIVER OF BREACH. No fiilure by'the Suie to
enforce my provitiont hereof ofler eny Cveni orDefiuli shell
be dcerrieda wiivercfitsrighu with rcgirdto ihii Event of
Dcriult,or my tubtequeni Event of Oefiuli. Noexprett
fiiture to enforce my Event ofOefiuli thai! be deemed i
wtlvtr ofihe ri ght ofihe Slote to enforce each md all of the
provijioM hereof upon any funhtr or other Event of Default
on the put ofihe Coniracier.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by » piny hereto to the other pmy
shtll be detrned to hpvt been duly delivered or given at the
lime efmiiliflg by eartified miii, poiuge prepaid, In a United
States Pott Office addretsed to the pmiet at the ^drtttta
given inbtoeki 1.2 end l.a.heiein.

IS. AMENDMENT. Thit Agreement may be amended,
waived or ditcharged only by an intirumem in writing tigned
by the paniet hereto and only iRer appioval of such
amenilmcni, waiver or tditcharge by ihc Covemor md
Executive Council ofihe State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circunutinces punumt to
State law, ivlt or policy.

IP. CONyTRUCTlON OF AGREEMENT ANDTERMS.
This Agreemeni shall be construed in accordance with the
lt«n of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upoit and
inures to the benefilofthe parties and their respective
succasson ar^ uiigns. The wording used in this AgrtcffleAt
is Ihe wordinf chosen by the piiitcs to express their muiual
intent, and i« rule of construciiort shall be applied against or
in favor ofmy party.

2C. THIRD PARTIES. The panic* hereto do itoi intend to
brnefii any third panics and this Agreement shall rtoi be
construed ID confer any such benefit. . .

2t. HEADINGS. The hcidings ihrovghovl the Agrttmem
are for reference purposaonly.andihc words conuined
therein shall in no way ^ heldto tiplain, rrtodi^, amplify or

. aid in the inierpreuiiori, cdnsiruc'iioo or meaning of the
provisiorts of this Agreerrteni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additionai provisioru set
forih in the emchtd EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
refrrence.

23. SEVCRABILtTV. Inihe event any ofihe provisiotuof
this Agrtcntrii ere held by a coun of compeieni jurisdiciion to
be contrary to my state or federal law, the rtmaining
provisiota of this Agreement will remain in full forte md
effect. . , ^

K. ENTIRE AC REEM ENT. This Agreemeni. which rrtay
be eiecuied in a numbcrofcounierpans, each of which shall
be deemed inotiginel.-consiituies the entire Agrtemcni and
understanding between the parties, md supersedes til prior
Agreements and undcraiandings reining hereto.

Page 4 of 4
Conlracior Iniliols ££L

Date
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable (o AM Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit e betailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proriciency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisiaiive action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the Slats Agency has tlierighl to.modify Service priorllies
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so es to achieve compliarKe
tt^erewilh.

• 1.3. Notvnihsiending eny otMr provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services'Sf^ail

continue effer.June 30. 2019. and the Oepariment. shall not be liable for eny
'  paymenis for services provided after June 30. 2019. unless end urtlil an

appropriation for these services has been received from the slate legislature and

' funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SFY'2022-2023 biennia.

1.4. ' The Stale has applied for the Slate Opioid Response Grant (Ti-16-0t5) and will

continue to perform due diUgsnce in the application'process. However, the Slate
makes no representation that it will receive the funds, in no event shall the State be

liable lor costs Incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Stale's receipt of federal funds applied for in the State Opioid Response Grant
(Tl-ie-OIS.

1.5. For the purposes of this conlracl. Granite Untied Way shall be identified es e

subrecipienl, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0: et seq.

2. Scope of Work
2.1. The Conlraclor shall provide substance use disorder information and referral

services through 2-i-i NH statewide. Services shall Include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring all calls received are answered by e properly trained Information end

Referral specialist according to training requirements in Subsection 4.2.

2.1.2. Providing conridential and multilingual services'twenty-four (24) hours per day
seven (7) days per week

2.1.3. Identifying information end service needs related to the callei's substance use
disorder or the substance use disorder of a family member, significant other,

friend, or concerned party.

2.1.4. Assessing callers for eddrtionai needs and providing appropriate resources

based on eliglbfllty Including, butnot limited to;

2.1.4.1. Housing ^
CrMAaUrCedWcy EtfTbtA Contf»cni» fnMia ^/
SS-NiS-eOASOa-CAlLC P«9t«oiS Oan
Aw.MrZUie
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2.1.4.2. Menial health services

2.1.4.3. Social supports

2.1.5. Contacting emergency services, depending on the nature of any crises that may
be discussed with the caller, including, but nol limited to:

2.1.5.1. Oirscting callers to 911 it a clieiti is In Imminent danger or (here is en
emergency.

2.1.5.2. ir me cl>er>l is gneoie or unwilling lo call S11. the Ccniractor shall contact
emergency services.

2.1.5. Assisting clients who ere aoiaiy seeking referral information to epproprtale
treatment and other resources in the client's service area.

2-1.7. Oireclty Iransferfing clients who have a riorvemergency need and are seeking
assistance with accessing treatment services to Ihe Department's Regional Hubs
for substance use disorder services (Hubs), based on the client's location, when

appropriate.

2.-2. Prior to innialing services, the Contractor shall cotlaborale with (he Department to
establish a plan for trisging calls from 2-1-1 NH lo the Hubs. The plan must.be
approved by the Department no latei than October 31. 2016. The plan shall include,
but not be limited to:

2.2.1.' ident'ificetion of best practices.

2.2.2. Protocols end procedures for the cell triage sysiem.

2.2.3. A process for bi-directional Information sharing of updated referral resource
databases to ensure that each entity hes recenity updated ref^rei tnformaUon.

2.3. Tha Coniractor shall have agreements with at! Hubs tor bl-'dtredionai communicaiion
and coordination ol'servlces no later than January 1, 2019.

2.4. The Coniractor shall update Its referral resource database weekly (or substance use
disorder (SUD) services end other human and social services that aid in individuals
in achieving and maintaining recovery.

2.4;i. The Contractor shall conduci ongoing outreech to .SUD and heailh/human
service providers to ensure reeMime accuracy of resources and update data as
appropriate.

2.5. The,Contractor shall coordinale social marketing campaigns with existing networks
to promote 2-t-1 NH including, bul nol limited to. the Anyone. Anytime campaign.
Existing networks include, but are not limited lo:

2.5.1. Integrated Delivery Networks (IDNs)

•  2.5,2. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs)

Cf*f««umeawiy BWWA CwUirtwWW*.

6S-20ie-8OASO*<ALlC P»g»Ict6
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2.6. The Contractor shall partidpaie in all quality compliance. monltorirtQ. and
improvement activities raquesteP by the Department which will include, bui is not
limited to;

2.6.1. Demonsirated compliance with guidelines from the Alliance of information and
Refecrat Systems (AIRS) for quality control and evaluation. - '

2.6.2. Participation in electronic and in-person cat) record reviews.

2.6.2.1. Caller satisfsction surveys, which will be developed in collaberation with
and approved by the Dapartment (or evaluelion use beginning In July
2019.

2.6.3. Participation in site visits

2.7. The Contractor shall participate in training arxf technical assistance activities as
directed by the Department.

3. State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant Standards
3.1. The'Contractor shall establish formal iniormation sharing and reterral agreements-

with the Hubs, compliartl with all applicable conridenliality laws,.including 42 CPR
Part 2.. , '

3.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department with verifying thet clienl refeirals to the
Hubs have been conipieted by ihe Contractor.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and imptementelion
plena assdcitfed with SOR-funded activities to ensure services ere in place within
thirty (30) days of contract effective dale, unless the Department approves an
enernalive timeline at the request of the vendor.

3.3.1. II services are unable to tw offered within the required timefreme. the Contrector
shall submit an updated implementetiori plan to the Department for approval to.
outline ahlicipaled service start dales.

3.3.2. The Department reserves the right to (erminale the' contract and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of contrecl

effective date.

4. Staffing

■  4,1. The Corttraclor shall submit a staffing end recmitmeni plan to Ihe.Oeparlmeni wllhin

(7) seven days of contrecl effective date.

4.2: The Conlractor shall ensure that ail call center staff are properly trained in how to
assist individuals with substance use disorder, or concerned parties. Training topics
shall include, but not be limited to

4.2.1. Addiction 101.

4.2.2. Etimlnating Stigma. -

Gi«rti»urtirtW»y ErfiMtA Cwinowrrrgw^^g/
8S-201ft.BOAS-O44ALlC PxjejBTS . 0«'« ' ̂
R«v,0«n4/ia
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4.2.3. Safe language practices. > / '

4.2.4. Other topics idenllfietj by the Oepartmenl.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of (1) orve full-time Staff person to update
lha Contractor's database weekty for SUD services artd other human and social
services that aid in individuals in achieving and maintaining recovery.

4.3.1. The Corttraclor shall conOuci ongoing oulreach to SUD arxl health end human
service providers to ensure real-lime accuracy of resources and update data es
appropriate.

S. Reporting
5.1. The Conlraclor shall provide de-identified, aggregate monthly web based reports by,

the 20*' of the month foUowing.the reporting month. The reports shaD include, but not ,
be limited to: '

5.1.1. Numberof phone calls received relative to SUD. including the average number of
calls each month.

5.1.2. Nature of each phone caii-

5.1.3. Number of callers referred from the call center line to Hubs.

. 5.1.4. Number of callers directly transferred to Hubs.

5.1.5. Number of callers referred from the call center line to non-Hub services..

5.1.6. Number of callers referred from the call center line to non-SUO services.

5.1.7. Average amount of time callers wait In call queues before an egem responds.

5.1.8." Percentage of total callers who hang up before reaching an-agent.

5.1.9. Average amount of time it takes for the call to be answered.

5.1.10. Average amount of time an agent spends speaking with the caller, including hold
time.

5.1.11. Percentage of callers that received a busy tone when they call.

5.1.12. Call center caller types (self, concerned party, and/or professional).

5.1.13. Caller demographics and infomiation whien available including, but not limited to:

•  5.1.13.1. Substance ol choice.

5.1.13.2. Housing issues. , ' .
\

5.1.13.3. Crimlr>al Justice Issues. '

5.1.13.4. Employment issues.

5.1.14. Caller locaUon.

5.1.15. Emergency/Imminent Risk Invotvement/Level Of Urgency.

Gf«rt«UnB«iWt, CcnwtwiNtlati
ss-jei#-eaAS-04-CAiic P49»4oi8
R«v.04r24(l8
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5.1.16. Services sought.

5.1.17. Outcome of each phone cell including, but not limitet) to:

5.1.17.1. fieferrsls lo Hub (or services end clinical evaiuBlion.

5.1.17.2. Information and resources provided via the phone.

6. Performance Meaeures
6.1, The Gontraclof shall ensuro that 100% o( individoats in need o( substance use

services who remain on the phone during the transfer of the cell ere directly
transferred to their Regional Hub.

6.2. ' The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of irxjividuals who call 2-t-1 NH (or SUO
service inlormatior^ or referral will speak to a 2-1-1 staff member on the Hrst call.

6.9. The Contractor shall gather baseline data from January 1. 2019 - September 30.
2019 or> the areas listed below. Performance measures regarding these areas will

be negotiated with>the Contractor by October 30,20i0.

6.3.1. The percentage of callers thai received a busy tone when they cell.

6.3.2. The averege amount of lime callers wait in call queues before an agent
responds.

6.3.3. The percentage of callers who hang up before reaching en agent.

6.3.4. The average amouni of time it takes for'the call to be answered.

£L0«Ml«Ur(1tOWir &MW1A ConUiCta IflUtlt.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

t) The Siwe shall pay ihe Cowrector an Bitioyni not 10 exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8. Price LimltaBon for Ihe
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope ol Services

t.l. This Aflfeamanl (»,funded vriih funds from the Substance Abuse 8f>d Montal KcsHtt Services'
Adminbuelion. State Oplold Response Grsni. CFOA 093.788. Federal Award Idenlircaiion Number
<FAIN], H7dTlb6l08S.

•  V2. . The Cbnireaofaflieei 10 provide Ihe services in Exhiwi A. Scope of Service in compliance with funding
roqulremants. Failure to meet the scope of services may ieoperdiie Iho funded Coniraeior's current
end/or future funding.

2} Peymem tor said services sheP be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on e cost reimbursemenl basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fuHillmant ot
this Agreement, end theO be in.accordance wilh the epp'oved line iiam in Exhibii 6-l end Exhibit 6-2.

2-2. The ContfBclof wiU aubmil en invoice in a form seiisfaciory to the State by the Iwenlioth woriting day of
each month, which idenlifies and Fequests rsimbursemeni (ot authorized expanses incurred in the pr'or
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and raiutnad io the Oepattmoni in order to
initiate payment. Tne Coniractot egtees lo iieep records of iheit ectiviiies related to Depenmcnt
programs and services.

2.3. The Stole shall moke poyment to the Contractor wiihin thirty (30) days ol recelpi of each Invoice,
Bubseguent to opproval ot ihe subrntied Invoice end 0 sufr<c'eni funds are available! The Contractor win
keep detailed records ol.iheir ociiviilas rotated to OHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shalJ be due lo the Stale no laler than forty (40) days after the coniraei Form P-37.
Biock 1.7 Completion Oata.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, an invoices may be assigned on etacironlc signature end emeilad to
Abbv Shockieviadhhs.nh.QOv.

2.6. Payments rrwy bo withhold ponding receipt el required reports or documentation as Idontifiod in Exhtoit
A. Scope of Services and inihis Exhibit e.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of lha General Provisions 9-37, changes limiled lo adjusting emourds between
budget line items, retaiad Hems, amendmenii of related budget exhibits wiiNn the-price timlielion. end to
adjusting ercumbrances between State Fiscal Years, rnay be medo by written agreement of both partlea end
may be made without oblatning approval ol the Governor and Executive Council.

Grwds UrtiBdWey EiNbSB CorWaw inSHIs
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SPECtALFROVISIOHS

Contractors Obi'igarons; The Contractor covenenia ar^d agrees that all funds racefved by the Cbniroctor
under the Contract shall be used only at psymenl lo the Coniracior for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, ir^ the furtherance of the slorcseid covenenls, the Contractor hereby covenanis end
agrees as loltows:

1. Compllence with Federal and Slate Lews: If the Conlrsctor Is permitted lo determine the eligibility
of individuols such ellgrbilily delerminelion shall bo mada in accordance wilh applicable federal end
eiato lavrt. regulations, otdars, guldeilnas. poiieios and procedures.

2. Time end Menner of Delermlnatlon: Ellgibiliiydeiarmlnations ehaU be mode on forms provided by
Ihe Ocpanmenrfor Ihet purpose and shall be made and remade at such limes as are prescrfb.ed by
theOepanmenl.

3. Documentation: In eddiilon to Ihe delerminaiicn forms required by the Depaitrr>cnt, the Conlracior
Bhtfl maintain a dala f4a on each recipient of services hereunder. which Tile shall include ail
intormaiion necessary to support an eligibilily determination and such olhor mformalion as'lha
Department requasis. The Contractor shall furnish the Department wnih oil lorms and documenialion-
regarding eligibility deiefminations ihel the Oepsnmeni may request or require.

4. Fair hfoarmgo: The Contractor understands inai all applicants for services hereunder, as wall as
.indrvrdyels declared Ineligibia have a right to a fair hearing regarding that dalerminaiion. The
Conlr^or hareby covenants and agrees thai atiappiicents.fersarvlcas shall be permined to fill out
en opplicaiion form ond that each applicant or ro-applicant ;hal) be Informed of his/her right lo afeir
heartrtg in eecordonco Wth Departrneni regulalions.

5. Gretulllaoor Klctrbaclis: TheCcnlreciorogrees thai ii is a breach olthls ConiracI to accept or
moKe a payment, grelully or offer of employment on behalf of (he Conireclor, ar^y Sub-Conlraclor or
Ihe Slate in order lo innuancd the perlormsnceof ihe Scope ofWoiti deialiad in Exhibil Aof Ihls
Conlracl. Tha Stela may lermlneie Ihls Contraet'end any sub-coniroct or.sub-egreemenl if It's
daiermined that payments, gratuities or oBors ol employmenl of any hind were offered or recahrad by
any offia'als. officers, employaas or agenls of Ihs Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Hatwilhstsnding anything to the contrary conleined in the Conitaci or in any
other dccumeni, contract or undersiendtng. It is expressly understood and agreed by Ihe parlies
hereto, that no payments wKi be made heteunder to reimburse Ihe Contractor for costs ir>curred lor
any purpose or for any services provided lo any individual prior to Ihe Effective Date ol Ihe Conlroct
end no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by lha Conirector lor any sorvlces pro(4ded
prior to the dale on which the Individual epplias for services or (except as otherwise provided by the

'  federb'i regulations} prior lo a determination thai the Indrviduai Is eligible for such services. <

7. Conditions of Purchsso: Nolwilhsianding anything to Ihe contrary contained >n Iho Conlracl. nothing
herein contained shell be deemed lo obligalo c require the Department (o purchase services
hereurvdct at o rate which reimburses the Connector in excess of Ihe Contractors costs, at o rota-
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necassary to assure Ihe quailly ol such service, or ei o
rate which exceeds Iho rota charged by the Conirector to ineiigibte individuals or othor third party
(unders for such service. If el eny lime during (he term of this Contract or otter receipt of the Final
EipendKure Report hereunder. the Oepartmen! shed determine mat the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Hems ol expense other than such costs, or has receivei) payembnt
in excess ol such costs or in excess ol such rotoi charged by Ihe Contractor to iheligibie individuals
or other third party tunders, the Deportmeni may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate Ihe rates (or'payment hereunder. In which eveni new rales shell be established: .
7.2. Deduct Ifom any future payment lo the Contractor Ihe emount of any prior raimburaemeni in

excess ol costs; . ^
ExNNt C - SpkUI PfOttjiOAS Ccnusder mdisii ^^
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7.3. Oemend repoymeni ot ti>e excese peymsri by tAe Comreaor In which event failure lo make
(uch repayment ehali ccnstituie en Event o' Default herevnpei. When the Coniraclor li
eermltted to delermine Die eligibility of inii'rviduats lor services. iheConirector agrees to
reimburse the Department for aD funds pM by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to eny individual who is found by the Depsriment to be ineligible lor such services el
any lime during irie period of retention of records eslebtshed herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIOENTIAIITV;

0. Melntenance of Recorde: in addition to ihe eiigibiiiiy records spectfted above, the Coniraclor'
covansnit ens egroos lo maintain ina fonowtng records during tho Coniroct Period:
0.1. Fiscal Records: boohs, records, doeumanis and othar deia evidencing and reflecting ail cotia

end other expenses Incumed by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ail
Income received or coliecieQ by the Conirseiar during the Contract Period, said records to be
msinteined In accordance with accounting procedures end practices which sutftcianiiy and
property reflect ell Such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to Ihe Oeparimenl. and
to include, without limitation, all ledgars. bootis. records, and originel evidence 0> costs such as
purchase repuislllons and orders, vouchers, repuisrtions for materials, inventories, valuations of
ift-idnd contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
OepeAmeht.

- 6.2. Sieiistical Records: Slatitticai. enroiimeni. attendance or visit records for each lecipleni of
services during tho Coniroct Period, whicft records shall include eti records of apptlcaiion ond
eiigibiiiiy (including eli forms required to determine eligibility for eech such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services end et invoices submitted <0 (he Department to obtain
payment for such urvices.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and es prescribed by the Deponment regulations, tha
Contrsdar shell relein medicol records on eech patieni/recipiani of services.

9. Audit: Centracior shall submit en annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ol the
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that the repot be prepared in accordence with the provision of
Office of Management end Sudgei Circular A-i 33. 'Audits of Stales, Locsl Govornmenis, end.Non
Profit Organizations" end (ho provisions of Standards for Audd ol Governmental Orgenizallons.

. programs. Acliviiles and Functions, issued by ihe US General Accounting OfTica (GAO standards) es •
they pertain lo financial compliance audits.

'9.1. Audit end Review: During the term of ihisContrect end tho period lor retention hereunder. the
Depetmenl. the Unded States Depertmeni ol Health end Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall hove access to all reports and records rhaintained pursuani to
Ihe Contract for pur^ses of audit. exomlAelbn, excarpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit LiabHiiies: In addit'ion lo ond not in any way >n limilslion of obligations of the Contrecl. Ii is
understood and ogrood by tho Coniraclorlhai theConirador shell be held liable for any'state,
or federal oudil exceptions end shall return lo Ihe Depertmeni. eU payments made under the
Contract to which exception hes been taken or wh'eh have been.disallowed because of ouch an
exceplcn.

to. Confldpntlallty of Records: Ail Informalion, reports, end records mainlained hereunder or collecfed
In connoction wlih the performance of Ihe services and the Coniiact shall be conrideniial and ehotl nol
be disdosed by Ihe Coniraclor, provide however, thai pursuani to stele taws end (he regulations of
the Oepatmeni regarding (house anddisdosure of euch information, disclosure may be made to
public offidols requ'rtng such intormotion In corvnocilgn with (heir official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the admlnlstreiion of the services end (he Contract; end provided further, thai
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient (or eny purpose not
directly connected with (he edminisiraiion of (he Dopariment or the Conirectorts responsibilities wfih
respect lo purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
eltomeyorguerdian.

(
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Netwfihuanding anything lo the contrary contained hereir^ th« COvananti ond conditions ecnielned In
the Paragraph shall survive ihe termlnsilon oi the Conitaci lor any reason whatsoever.

It. Reports; Fiscal 8r\d Surtistical: The Coniracioragraeslo submit the lollowing reports at Ihe lollowtrtg
limes H requ acted by Ihe Department.
tl.t. interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containirtg a detailed description o1

en costs and rwrt-attowabie eiQenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the repM end
eor^talnlng such other inlormeiton as shill be deemed eelisfaclpry by the DepartmenI to
Justify the role.ol poymeniheioundor. Such Financial Repots shoii pe submlRed on ine form
deslgnetod by the Oepertmeni or deemed salisladory by Ihe Depenmern.

St.2. Final Repot; A Fmai repot ehai! be eirbmlned wlihin thity (30) Oeys ehor (ha end of the term
ofthit Conirecf. The Finel Repot ehali be in o tom aelislBctery lo Ihe Oapetmerti sr%d ehoil
contain a summary elelement of progress toward goals end objectives stated irt the Proposal
end other bformalion required by the Oepatment.

12. Completion of Servlcee: Disanowanca oi Costs: Upon the purchase by ihie Oepetmeni of the
maiimum number of units provided for In the Ceniroct end upon parent ol Ihe price liniltaiion
hereurtder. the Contract end all the obligaiiorts of ihe psties hereundat (except such obirgsiions os.
by tha terms of the Contract ere to be performed efter the etsd ot the lerm of this Contract and/or
survive the lerminaiion of (he Contract) shall lerminaie. provided however, ihai rf. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Repot the Depatrneni shell disallow any expenses claimed by the Coriirvctor as
cosli hereunder the Oepanmem shctl reiain the righi. at its discrbiion, to deduct the amount of such''
expanses as are disaiibwed or lo recover such sums from the Ccyilractor.

13. Credits: All documenlt. notleei, press raleasos. research reports arid other malerials prepared
durfng or resulling from the performs nee of the services ol Ihe Contract sholl include Ihe following
statement:

13.1. The proparaiionof (his (report, doeumen elc.) was financed under'a Contract with the State
' of Now Hsmpshlto, Doparlmonl of Heath end Human Servicet. with funds proi^ed In pert

by the Stole of New Hampihire end/or such other funding sources Qs were availebte or
required, e.g., the United Stales Dopsrtmeni of Health and Human Services.

14. Rrtor Approval and Copyright Ownership: AD mole rials (written, video, audio} produced or
purchased under the contract shell have prior opprovel from DHHS before priniing. production.

'  diStntution or use. The DHHS witl retain copyright ownership lor any and ell original materials
produced. Inchiding, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any malerials produced under ihe contract witlioul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Lave end Regulations: (n the operation of eny (oclUties
for providing services, the Contractor shell comply wiih eiiiaws. orders end teguiaiions of ledsrai,
steta, county end municipal authorities and with any direction of eny Public OfTicer or ofTicors
pursuant to law? which sheh impose on order or duly upon the contractor with respect to Ihe
operation of the faell-iy or the provtslonoKhe services at such facility, if ony governmental licensa or
permit shall be required forihe operation of tho said (ociliiy ot ihe performancoof the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or porml. and will 81 oil times comply with Ihe terms and
conditions of oecheuch license or permil. in connoclion with the foregoing requiremenis, (he
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees ihoi. during the lorm of this Coniroci the fociiiiies shell
comply with all rules; orders, regulations, and requirements of Iho Stele Othce of Ihe Fire Morghol and
(he local fire protection agency, ond shall be in eonformonco with local building and zoning codes, by-
lows and reguiaiions.

16. Equol Employmant Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractoi will provide an Equal Employment
Oppohunily Plan (EEOP)lo the OTice for Chhl Rights. OfTce of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single sward of S500.000 or more. II Ihe recipient receives S2S.OOO or more and has 50 or

EiNWiC-SpecUiFrevbieni Cenueeur initieb j^r_
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mote employees, it will maintain a cuwem EEO? on file end submli an EEOP Certification Perm (oihe
OCR. cenitying Ihei Bs EEOP is on file. For recipienls receiving less ihen *26,000. or pubUe groniees
with lower than 50 employees, regardless ol ihe ernounl ofthe eward, ihe roclpicnl will provide an

■  EEOP CeflilicaHon Form to the OCR cetlifytng h Is rvji required to submit or moimein on EEOP. Nan-
profit orBeniaaiions, Indian Tribes, end med'eal end educational inslitwlions ore exempt Irom the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit a ceriificalion lorm to the OCR to claim Ihe examplion.
EEOP Cetiiftcation Fomti ere available at; hflpr/www.ojp usdO)labcui/oef/pdls7ccri.pdr.

17. Limllod Eriglleh Proficiency (tEPJ: Aa clarified by Executive Order 13168, Improving Access to _
Services for persons wflh Llmtted English Proficiency, end resulting agency guidance, netionoi orlgen.
discrimination inciodos discrtm.lnaiiorion (he basis of limiied English proWency (LEP). To ensure
ewnpiionco with the Omnibus Crime Control and Sofa SHoeis Act of i©60 end Tine VI of the Civil
Righls Art of 19W. Conlrsctors must taXe reasonable steps to ensure Ihet LEP peiwns have
meanlnglui access to Hs programs

i  , .

18, Pilot Progromfor Enhancement elContrscter Employee Whistlobiower Proloctlono: The
lo1lowir^g ehatl epply to ellcontracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (cumenlly. *150,008) • '

Contractor Empiovee Whist^blower Rkimts and Reourement To Inform Emplovees of
WKiSTLEBLOrviB Rights (SEP 2013)

(e) Thb conlrea and empioyoes worhing on this conirect will be subjecl lo the whistiebtower rights
end remedies in ihe pilot program on ConifBClor employee whistiebiower proiections estoWisheO el
41 U.S C. 4712 by section 828 of Ihe National Oelanse Authorizatiott Aci tor Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. l-
.112-239) and FAR 3.908,

(b) The Contractor'shell inform its employaas in wriling, in the predominant lariguege of Ihe workforce,
of employee whlsllabfower rights and protecllons under 41 U.S.C. .47t2. as described "in aactlon.
3,908 of the.Federal Acquisition Regutalion,

(e) The Contractor shell insert iha substance of this douse. Including this paragraph (c), in all
tubconlracts ovar the simplified acqulsilion threshold.

19. Subconiractore: OHHS recognizes that (ha Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
groBier expehise to perform certain health care services or funclions tor efficiency or convanianca,
bul the C'onlraclor ahali retain ihe responsibllily and occountabHity for the (unciion(s). Pr'ior to
subcontracting, (he Contractor shall evatuBle the subconiiactor's attliiy to perform the delegated
(uncl'iori(s). This is accomplished through owriBon ogroomBnt that specifios acilvitles and reporting .
responsibilii'as of the subconiracior and provMss tor revoWng the delegation or imposing eenclioni i1
the subcontractor's performance Is not odequoto. Subccntrectors ore subjecl lo the came conltoclual
conditions as the Contractor and the Conlractot is responsible lo ensure subcontractor eompllanee .
w'nh those conditions. • .
When the Corttrecfor deiegoles a funcl'on to a subconiracior. the Contractor shall do the following;
19.1. Eveiueto ihaprospocliva subeoniractofs obBity to perform the acllvilles.-berore delogaiing

the function

19.2. Have a written agreem'eni.wiih the subconlroclor that specifiBS activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation wSlbe managed if Ihe subcontreclor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor (he subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

EmibliC-SosciiiProvbions Conutow ifilsli
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19.4. Provide lo OKHS an ennual ichedule Menlifyihg el subconliecloa. delogated luncl'Ons end
responsibit'liet. end wmen Ihe tubconiracior'i padomience win t>e reviewed

19.5. DKHSehsllelltadiscrelion.reviewendepproveailauticoniracia.

II tbe Conusctor idenilTios dercieneiot c areas lor Improvemerii ere Wentified. the Coniredor ehal)
take toma'Nt setion.

OEPIMITIONS
As used in (he Cenlrscl. the foilowtng terms shoi) hsve the toUowIng meanirtgs;

COSTS: Shan moan those dired end irtdired ilema'd expense determined by the Department to be
aPosvable and reimburublo ir> eccorditnce with cost and eccounling principles established in eccordence
wiih stete and federel lews, regulations, rules ettd orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Oepeitment o! Health etvd Humon Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean lhat section of the Contractor Manual which Is
aniiUed 'Financial Menagemenl duidelines'end which conistns the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Siete of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; II epptlcablB. shell mean tho documoni eubrnmed by tire Contreetor on a form or fonris
required by .the Oepertmeni end containing e description of the SeiMcss to be provided lo eligible
individuals by the Contractor in eccordance with the terms and corrditions of Ihe Conlracl end setting forth
Ihe total cost end sources of revenue Iw eech.serviceto be provided under the Conireci.

UNIT; For eech service thei Ihe Contractor is to provide lo eligiole individuals herevnder. shot! meorr ihel
period of lime onhat speciTied octiviiy deternvrted by the Department and spacifred in Exhibit 6 of the
Conireci.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federoi or stela laws, raguleiiDns. rules, orders, end policies, etc. ore
referred to in Ihe Contract. Ihe seid reference ahan ba deemed to meen eii auch laws, regulations, etc. es
they may be arnended or revised from the time.lo time

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Oeperiment of Admlnistrstive
Services'conteinlng e compilation of all rogulaiions promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch $4t -A. lor ttte purpose of implementing Stale of NH end
federal regulations promulgated thoreunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract win r^oi supptani eny existing federoi funds ovoiiable for these services.

Cjem C - SmcW ProAlons ConUsttcrlnlOsit
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

Y. Subperagreph 4 of the General Provfelons of (his conirect, CondfUonei Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAI. NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
'  NoMlhtlanding shy provision of this Agteemenl to the conirary, ell obligaliont of the State
'  hereunder. Including without limitsiion, the continuance of payments, in whols or In pah.

under this Agreement axe eonlingeni upon conlinued appropriation or evailaOihry of funds.
"ItKluding any aubsegueni changes lo the eppropriation or evaileeilfly of funds affected by
eny euia or federal legblalive or execullve eclion Ihel reduces, eliminoles, or olherwise
modifies the epp/oprielion or eveiie&iiiy of funding for this Agreement end the Scopo of
Serves provided in Eihtpli A. Scope of Services, in wMie or in part, in no evem eheii the
Sieie be liable for eny payments hereunder in oiceis ol eppreprfsied or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, lerminalion or modificalcn of appropnaiad or evaileWe furtds. the
Stale shad have the rlghi to witnitoW paymeni until such funds becoma available. If over. The
Stale sheD have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services urtder this Agreement
immedlatefy upon giving Ihe ContrBClor notice d such reduction, termination or modification.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accouftt(s) iflentiriod in block 1.6 of ine General Provisions. Accourtl Number, or any ether
account. Irt the event funds are r^ucad or unavailable.

2. Subparegraph 10 ol the General Provisions of this conirect. Termirtfiion. Is amertded by adding the
following language:

10.1 The State may lerminete the Agreement el any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stele,' 30 days after giving tt>e Conuector written rtoliee that the Stale is eserclsing its
option 10 terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop end submit to the State a Trertsiiipn Plan for services ur>der the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future nee.ds of clients
lecelving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

tO.3 The Comraclor ehell fu9y cooperate whh Ihe State and shall promptly provide deieiled
iniormalion to Support the TtansHion Plan Includcig; but not limited to. Br>y Wormetlon or
data requested by the State related io the tepnination of the Agreement end Trensit'ion Plan
end shall provide ongoing communiceiton and revlstons ol the Transition Plan to Ihe State as
requested. '

10.4 In (he event that services under ihe Agreement. Including but not limited to cfients recelvi^
aervites under the Agreement ere Irensitioned to having services delNored by another entity
Including contrscted prov'idefs or the State. Ihe Conlroelor shell provide a procesi for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Conirector shall estsb'lish a method of notifying clients and other effected individuais
about the transition. The Contradoi shall include Ihe proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted lo the Stale as described ebove.

3.' Renewal:
The Department reserves the hghl to erdsnd this Agreement for up to two (2) addillonel years,
cor^ingcnt upon soiisfaciory delivery ef cervices, available funding, agreomoni of the paHes end
approval of the Govorrtor and Execulive Council. ' '
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CERTIFICATION REGAROIWQ DRUQ^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Tho Conlreclor Wenlified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisienj agrees to comply with the provisions of
Seelions 5151-5160 ol the Onjg-Free Workplace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Tiile.V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et eaq.). end lunhar agrees to have the Contrector's tepresenialive. es idcnllfiecl m Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of thecetwrei Provisions execute me following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR ORANTEES OTHER THANlNOfVIOUALS

US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certlFiCBtlon Is required by irw regulations lmplemet*iinB Sections 5151-5160 ol Ihe Orug.prec
Workplace Acl of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690, Trtle V, SuWitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 elseq.). The Jwuery 31.
1009 regOtotlonj were amended end published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Fedcrel Regisier (pagas
21681-21691), and require certificotion by grantees (and by interance. sub-granleet etsd sub-
conlraclors), prior lo award, thai they will maintain a drug-tree woikplace. Section 3017.630(c) ol the
fegulaiion provWas thai o grantoo (end by inference. suB-granlaes end sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect lo make one certification to the Oeperiment in each federal fiscal year in liou ol cortificoles for
eech grant during Ihe federal'fiscel year covered by the certifrceiion, .The certificate set out below is e '
metcrtal repreienteiion of fact upon which reliance b pieced when (ho agency awards the grant. False

. certificatiort or violBllon of the certificalion shall be grounds for suspcmton of paymarils. suspianston or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debanmenl. Conlreclore using this lorm should
sand it to:

Commlsskmar

NH Oeparlrnent of HaaRh ar^ Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free worfcpleca by:
^  1,1. Publishing a slolemertl rwlifying en^plbyecs thai the unlj^ut manufaclure, distribution.

dispensing, possession or use of a corilroUed substance Is prohibited in the granleo's
workplace and specifying Ihe actions that will be taken against employees for violaliori of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free owareness program to inform employees aboul
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in.ihewcrkplaee;
1.2.2. The granlee's policy of mainialnirtg e drug-frae workplace;
1.2.3. Any evsiisble drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. Tho penatlies thai may be impossd upon employees for drug abuse violations

Qtturrtng In Ihe vflrkplace;
1.3, Making U e requiremenithat each employee lo beengeged in Ihe performance ol the grant be

given e copy of ihe statement required by paragraph (e);
1.4, Notifying the employee in the siatemenl required by paragraph (a) lhat. as a condition of

employmeril urtder ihe granl, Ihe employee will
1.4.1. AMdo by Ihe terms of Ihe stelemeni; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in wriling of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

stalule occurring in the workplace nolatei than five calender days after such
conviclion; •

1.5. Notifying Ihe ogency in wiiling, within len calendar days after receiving nolee under
subparegroph 1.4.2 from on employee or olherwise receiving octuol notice of such convldion.
Employers ol convicted employees musl provide nolice. Including positioo tille, 10 every grant
offtcar on whose gram ectlvity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal eyency
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has desiQAaled e cential point (or the receipt o' such nolieei. Notice shall liKlude the
identtf«eilort numt>er(s) ot each affected s'dht;

1.6. Taking one of the loD^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
tubparagreph 1.4.2, with respect toariy employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Toklng.epprepriate personrtel action agalrtsi such an employea, up to ant) Including

larm nation, consistent with the requirements of the RehebilKalion Acr of 1973, as
emended: or

1.6.2. Requiting such employae to ponidpaie tatisladorlty in e drug ebuse osiistance or
' rehebiiitetion piogrem approved lor such purposes by e Federql, Stete, or local heatlh.
law enforcement, or other appropitaie egency.

1.7. lyiaking e pood ronhefoii le cortilnue to tnoimein e drug-free workptecetlyough
Implementsilorief paragrephs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3.1.4. i.S.end 1.6.

2. The grantee mey insert In the apace provided bslow the siie[a} lor the performertca of work done in
connection with tite specific grant.

Place of Pertormenco (street address, city, courtly, state, tip code) (list each iocelion)

Checlt D If there ore workplaces on file that ate not idenliried here.

Conlroetpr Name:

Date Name; 1»F-^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYINO

Tha Cpnirs'cter Mentined In Section t.3of(ne Gane'ai Ptovlslena agrees to comply wItMhe pre^slonsirt
. Soclion 310 of Public Lew 101 •121. Covtmmenl wide Guidance to'New Resiricllons on Lobbying, and'
31 U.S.C. 13S2. and further agrees to have the Conirocior't represeniailve. as idenirned in Sections 1.11
end 1.12o1(heGeneraiPrQvislonsexecule (he (oilwringCe>l(fi:aiioK

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF eOUCATlON-CONTRACTORS _• •
OS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indiceie opplieable program covered):
Temporary Assblance 10 Needy Familias under Tiila IV-A
*Chlld Support Enlorcemenl Program under TKle IV-0
'Social Servicas Block Grani Program under TiUe XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community .Sarvicei Block Grant ur>de' Trtie VI
'Child Cere Oevelopmeni Bloc* Grant under Tlile tV

#•

The undersigned certifies, to Ihp best of frit or hor knowlodge end belief, thai:

1. No Federei epproprialed funds have been paid or will be paid by or on bohall of ifte undersigned, to
eny person tor Influencing or anempting to influence en otfcei or employae of any agency, a Merrtbar
of Congress, onofflcer or employee of Congress, or en employee of o Member of Congress in •
ccnnaclion with the owardingof eny Federal controct conlinueiion. renewal, emendmenl. or
modiflciitron of eny Federal coryreci. greni. loan, or cooperative egreemenl (end by specific mention
sub^ranlee or suboonlraclor).

2. if erry funds other lhan Federal appropriated funds hove been peldorvi^ll be paid lo any poreon tor
.  influencing or attempting to'infiuertce en officer or employee.of any agency, e Member of Congress,

anofficer or employee of Congress, or en emptoyeeof a Member of Congress in connecijon with Ihls
Federal conlmcl. grant, loan, o' cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-granlee or sub-
canirsclor). the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard-Form ILL. (Disclosure fom lo
Report Lobbying, in eccordence with its insirucl'ons. eRached end identiried es Standard Exhibit £•!.]

3. The undersigned sheD require Ihal the language of this certilicBlion be included in the eword
.  documeni for sub^awards el all tiers (including subcontracts, aub^renls. end contrects urider grentt,

loans, and cooperative agreements] and Ihal ail sub-rocipierilt iheU'cerllfy artd disclose eccordingly.

This certificelion is o materiel representation of fact upon which reliance was placed'when this (renseclion
was mede or entered into. Submission ol ihls certiflcel'ion is a prerequisH'e lor making or enlering Into this
Irensaclton imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails lo file Ihe required
certificelion shall bo aubjeci lo e civil penally of not less lhan St 0.000 end not more than S100.000 (or
each'tuch failure.

Conlreclor Name:

<^-26-rr
Oeie "fWrtcJiame

Tills:

&nsnE>ceAiauoonR«e*i^Leee)tr\e CsxrsocrirSiUs,
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CERTIFlCATtON REOARDINQ OEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Conlrector Idenllfied in Section t.3 oilha Gsneia) Provisions sgreos to comply wilh the provltions of
Execulivo Office et the Preiideni; Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pad 76 regarding Debsrment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibiily Mattera. and further agrees to have the Contraeior'a
represenieiKre, as tdeniified In Sections t.lt and l.t2ofthe General Provisions exscuie ihefooowing
Certihcetion:

INSTRlJcTiONS FOR CERTIFICATION
s. 8y Bignirfg and submitting this proposal (conired). (he prospective primary panicipam Is providing the

cenirjcaiion set out below.'

2. The Inabailypt a person to provide tha cenirrcaton required below will not necessarily resull In denial'
ol pajticipelion in this covered Irar^seclion. It necessary, the prospeclrve participant shell submit en
eipianalibn of why h canrwl provide the certilicslior). The certrfcalicn or explanation wID be
considered in cortnectlon with the NH Oepadment of Health and Human Services' (OKHS)
determination whether to enter into this IransacliOR. However, lailure ol the prospective primary,
participani to furnish a certification or eh expiangllon shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transoclion.

3. The certification in this clause is a rnateriei representation ot fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS dotormlnod to enter Into this transaction. If h is later delermined'thftt (he prospective
primary psrt'rcipanl knowingly tendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
availaUe to the Federal Govemmenl. OHMS may lotmineleihislransadtorr (or cause or delaull.

I

4. The prospective primary participant shell provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this ptop<H8l (controcl) is submilied it at any lime the prospective primary pohlcipeni learns
that ha certificatibri was erroneous whan.submiced or has become erroneous by reason ol chenged
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
•  Iranseclion.' "participant.' 'person,' 'primary covered iranieciion.''prmcipal.' 'proposal.' end
'voluniarily.oxcluded,* as usedin this douse, have ihameartings set out in the Deflnitlons errd
Coverage Beclionsof the rules implemenling Execulrva Order'12S49:45 CFR Part 76. See the
altachod definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agroos by submitting this proposal (conlract} that, should the
proposed covered trar^seclion be entered into. il shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
trartsaclion with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or volunlerily excluded
from participotion irt ihls covered transaction, urtless auihoriaed by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary periidpant further agrees by subminir^ ihis proposal that it will include (he
clause titled 'CetTrricolion Regarding Oebarmenl. Suspension, Inetigibitily and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covotod TrshsBctiorts.* provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
(rertseclions end in all .solicitations for lower liar covered trenssclions.

6. A participant In a covered iransacllon may iely upon a certification of o prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that 'it is not.deborred. suspended, irteliglble. or involunlariiy oxcluded
froin (he covered Irensection. unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A pahicipeni may

decide the method and frequency by which il daiennlnes iha eliglbUiiy of its principals. Each -
participani may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of oxcluded parties).-

6. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require esieblishmeni of a system ol records
in order to render In good faith (he'certification required by this clause. Theknowtedge and

cuii»*«sni«><9 Fsgt 1 el i
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inlofmaiion o! B psrti'cipanl i» nol required to exceed thai which <s normally poitasaed by a prudent
person in the ordir^ry course of busineji dea'ir^s.

10. Except for trsnsactioni eulhorised under paraarsph 6 of these Irtstructlons. if a particlpantin a-
covered iransaclion knowlt>gly enters inlo a lower tier covered Ironsaclion whh a person who is
suspended, debarred, Inalisibla, or voluntarily excluded from padlc^alion In this transactiOR. <ft
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemmenl. DHMS may lermnate this Uanaaction
lor cause or default

PRIMARY COVEFieO TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary penlelpant cet'ties to the best ot Ks knowtodpe and beiiel, that i and its

principals: ^
1 l.i. ere not preaarMly debarred, suspended, proposed lot debarmeni, declared meligibie. or

votuniariiy excluded from cmtite trBr>30Clior>s by any Federal depertmeni or agency;
■11.2. have not wiihirt e three-yaar period preceding this proposal (eemraci) been convicted ol or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commisslort ol fraud or a criminei offense In
conrte^ion with obldining, ertampiing to obtain, or performing e public (Federal, Slato or local}
transaction or a cdntrsci under a public transaction: vioiaiion of Federal or State antilrust
sletutei or commission ol embeuiemant. ihelt, forgery, bilbaty. faislTicalion or destruction ot
records, making false slalemenls. or tacerving iioian property:.

11.3. are nol presently Indicled lor oinerwise ciiminaliy or tiviliy charged by a governmental entity'
(Federal.'Stele or local) with commlssionof any of the offenses or^umereted in paragiaph (l)(b)
of (his cerfiflcelion; end

11.4. have not wllhin a three-year period preceding this eppiicelion/prepgsel hod one or more public
t'ransaciions (Federal. Stale or local) larminaied for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary parficipanl Is unable to certify to any of the stetemenls in this
certirKeiion. such prospective psrticipanl ahaC attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13 By signing and submiiiing this lower tier prc^sal (contract), the prospective lower tier parttcipenl. as

defcned in 45 CFR Part 76. certlTies to lha best ol iis itrwwiedge and beiiel lhai H and its principals:
13.1. are nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debam^eni, declared inelifiibia, or

votuniariiy excluded from partiopelion in this tronsaciion by any federal deparfmenlor agerKy.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participarrt is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospeclfvQ perticipani stiall attach an er^lonation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting Ihii proposal (contract) that It w'rfl
include this clause eniiiied 'Certirtcalion Regarding Debarmeni, Suspension. Ineiigibiiity, and
VoiuniBiy Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Traniactiofis.* withoul modirrcalion in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicilalions for lower tier covered Irensections.

. Conlractor Neme:

Nsnfe:
Tme:

cwewsntsrii Fijs J ©ri
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CERTIPICATIOW OF COMPUANCE VWTH REQUlReWSNTS PERTAIHINO TO
PEOERAL NQNQISCRIMIHATION. EQUAL TREATMENT Of FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS *

The Contmdof idenlified in Section 1.3 el the General Pioviaions egreea by signature of We Corttraclor'a
repreaentalive as idenllTied irt Sections 1.11 end 1.12 ol the General Provisions, lo eiecule trie lollowirtg
ceniricaiion;

Contrecier will comply, end will require any subgraniees or sulKontrsctors 10 comply, with any sppliceble
lederal norujiscfimlnalion requirements, which m'ey include:

• We Omnibus Crime CoWrol end Sele Streets Act d 1968 (42 U.S.C. Sealon 3789d) which prohlbltt
recipients ol ledorei funding under this steiuie from aiscrlminailnfl, eiiner In employment practlces'or In
We delrvery of services c benefits, on the besis d race, color, religion, national origin, artd sex. Tt» Act
requires certain recipients lo produca an Equal Em;<oyment Opportunity Plan;

• the JuvenBe JusBce Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U-S.C, Section S672(b]) which edopts by
reference, the ciwt rights obligations of We Sale Streets Act. Recipients of federd funding ortder this
statute ore prohibited from dlscrtmlnailng. either in empteyinem praclices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on We basis ol reoe. color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act irwlodes Equal,
Emptoyment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act 011964 (42 U.S.C. Sectiert 2000d. which prohibits recipients ol federal fmanoai
ossistence from discrimineling on the basis of race, color, or neiiortal orlgW In any program or activity};

- the Rehabithalion Act d 1973 (29 U.S.C, Section 294), which prohibits recipients of federal rmarwiai •
essisiance from dtsertminating on the basis of disability, in regard lo employmenl and the delivery of
eoivices or b.e.r^efits, in any program or acltvity;

. the Americans with DiSBbittios Act Of 1990 (42 U.S.C, Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for parsons with disabllitios In employmenl, Siale and local
government services, pubb'c accommodations, commercial facilities, and trensportalion;
-Wo Educalion Amendments of 1072 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86}, which prohibits
discrimination on We basis of aex In federally essisted education programs:

- the Age Oiscriminetion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C, SoclionB 6108-07). which prohibits disermination on the
basis of age in programs or aclivittas receiving Federoi finartciai assistance. II does not indude
employmeiM discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pi- 31 (U.S. Department of Justice ReguSattons - OJJDP Grant Progrems); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimlnation; Equal Employmenl Opportoniiy; Policies
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (oquol prelection of the lavrt for laiW-basod and community
organiielions); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamcnla! principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships wHh faith-based end neighborhood organizaiions;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice f^eguiatons - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Orgonlzeiioris); and WhisUebfowar protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The National Defense AuWorlielion
Act (NDAA) lor Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enecled January 2,2013) We Pilot Progrem for
Enhancemeni of Conireci Employee Whislieblowef Protections, which protects employees eBeinsi
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acttvitias in connection wiW federal grams end conliads.

The certificaie set out below Is a maieriai leprBsenuiion of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
egerKy awards the gram. Felso certification or violation ot iho certification shall be grounds lor
suspension of payrrdnls, suspension onerminalion of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debermenl.'

Ceninctflf iflJUeu r
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(n ihfl event a Federal w Stole .court or Federal or Siaie odmlmsIrelMe apeney mmes e finding of
discrimination after e due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, neiional origin, oreox
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wiO fgrwaid a copy of ttie finding to fheOfticefor Crvil RigMt. to
theappticoMe eoniracling agency or divisiort within ihe Depenmenlot HoaBh end Human Services, end
(0 the Department of Health and human Service] Offce of the Ombudsmen.

TheComrsctor identified in Section i.3 of the General Provisions agroosby signature of the Contrsdor's
represenieiive as identified irt Sections 1.11 arx) t.i2ol the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlllcelion:

I. By algning end eubmining this proposei (oontred) it>e CotUraclor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indiceied above.

Conirador Name:

Date
1

Name

TiUe

Ejtfilgii c
Cenuscw inOtli.
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CEBTIFICATION REGARDING ENsaftONMEHTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew <03-227, Pal C • Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke, aUo Mown as the Pfo-Childfon Acl of 1M4
(Act), repui/es that smoking not be permitted in enyportionofeny indoor facility owned or leated or
coni/ected forty an entity end used loytirtety or regviarty lor iheprovisidn of healih, day care, education,
or litftry servicei to children urtdwUie egeof 18, tithe services ere funded by Federal progroms eiiher
directly or through Stale or local govemmenis, by Federal grenl. contract, loan, o' loan guarantee. The
lew does not apply to ehltdren'a services provided in privaie residences, laoiiiiet (urvled solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciiiiies used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment, failure
to comply with the provision* of the law may result in the imposition of o civil monetary oeneRy of up to
81000 per dey Bndro< the imposition of en administrative comotiance order art ihe reaponsiOle entity.

The Cooiractor Menltfad In Section 1.3 cl the General Provlitons agrees, by siflnelureoItt»e'ConUBctor;B
representative aS'ldeniifiedinSeciion 1.11 and i.iZofihe General Provisions,'to execute ihe following
certKication:

1. 8y signing end aubmlnirtg this conl/aci. Ihe Couraclor agrees lornake reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable previsions of Public Law 103-227, Port C. known as the Pro-CMldien Act of 1B94.

Contractor Name:

^te Na

Title:

OtMiMntSKt

I

Edksn H - Cert.luDon Rtggrdlne Cwittsdei Inliliii
EnvtronnnniilTOBsccoSmoW _
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions ofthe Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heeith Insurance. Portability and Accountability Act. Public Lew 104-1S1 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individuaily identifiable Health Information. 45
CFft Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined fierein. 'Business
Associate' shall meen the Contractor end subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement end 'Covered
Eniity' shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Oepartmer>l of HbaUh artd Human Services.

(1) OeflnlHona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the tenm'Breach'.In section 164.4Q2 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'BusB^ess Associate' has (he meaning given such term in section 160.103 oYTrtte 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. , '

c. 'Cowered Er^tltv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regutalions.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR SectionJ64.501.

e. 'Data Aaareaation' shali have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.' 'Health Card Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health cere operetloris'

irt 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health informaiiorr Technology for Economic'and Clinical Health
Act TilleXlll. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. •

h- *H1PAA' means the Health Insurance Porl^ilily and Accountability Act ol 1996, Public Law
104-1B1 and the Standards lor Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments Iherelo.

I. 'Individual' shall have (he same meaning as (ha term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Ittclude a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFRSection'164.50l(9).

|. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Pffllccted Health Information' shall have Ihe same mear^ng as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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f Shan have the seme meaning as the term 'required by law* in 4S CfR
Section 164!103.

m. 'Secretaiv' ehalt mean (he Secretary ol the Department of Healih and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule* shis'l mean the Security Standards lor the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 Cf^R Part 1&4. SubpartC. and amendments thereto.

». TJngaeuf^ Proiaetod Honlth iftformmton" Means protected health Irtrormatlon that Is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, cr.indecipheraoie to unauthorised individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by tho American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otfierwlse defined herein shall havo the meaning
established under 4S C.F.f^. Parts 160.163 end 164. as amended from lime to time, and (he
HtTECH

Act.

(2) BuBlneaa AsBOclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infomtation.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transrhil Protecled'Heatth -
Information (PHI) except as reasonablynecessary to provide the services oulltped under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to alt
its directors, officers.-employees end agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation ol the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I.' For the proper managemeritand administraliort of (he Business Associate:'
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. -For data aggregation purposes for the health cere operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is perm'itted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to maxlr>g any such disclosure, (0
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentiatly'snd
used or further disclosed only as required by law or lor the purpose lor wltich it was
disclosed to the third party: and (ii) en agreement from.such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with tr>8 HIPAA Privacy. Security, end Breach Notiftcetion
Rules of any breaches ol-ihe conridentlallty ol the PHI, to the exterri It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to e
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without tvst notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek eppropriele relief. )l Covered Entity objects to such disdosure. the Business
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Associate sfiali refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity ftss exhausted ell
' remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrtctioris over end above those uses or disclosures or security
selegusrds o( PHi pursuant to (r>e Privacy end Security Rule, the Business Associate
shell be bound by such additional resthetions and shall not disclose PHi in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any addiiional security sateguards.

(i) Obilaattona and Activities of Buelnose Aeeoclata.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer_ immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health-information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/br any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of th.e Covered Entity.

b; The Bus'tness Associate shall imnnedlaiely perform a risk assessmer>t when it becomes
aware of any of me ebove situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-idenlificatJon;

0 The^unaulhorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The exieni to which the risk to the prelected health information has been

mijigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach end immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
' Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notiricalion Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available at) of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on beheif of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ell of iis business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
reslrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the phi as provided under Section 3 (i). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contrector's business essociste
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates. who will be receiving PHI
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pu'Buant to this Agreement, with rights ot entorcemenl end Indemnlficelion from such
business assoctetes who shall bo governed t>y standard Paragraph 013 of the etandafd
contract provisions (P-37} of this Agreemerti (or the purpose of use and disclosure of
proteciad heaiDi informsUon.

r. Within Five (S) business days of receipt ef a written request from Covered Errlity.
Business Associate shall make evailabie during normal business hours at its offices ell
records, books, egreements, policies er>d procedures relating to the use and disclosure -
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance wllh ine terms of the Agreement.'

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving e written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Oesignaled Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 4$ CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amehdmeni of PHI or a record about en Ind'tvidual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall meka such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment end incorporate any such amandmant (o enable Covered Entity to fuirrii its
otrtigatlons under 45 CFR Section 164,526.

i. Business Associate shell document such disclosures ot PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required lor Covered Entity to respond to 8 request by en
indivldudi (or an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity (or a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such fnfomiaiton as Covered Entity may require lo fulfil) its obligations
to provide an accounting ofdisclosuree with respect to PHI in accordar^ce with 45 CFR -
Section (64.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
direcify from (he Business Assoclalo, (he Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request lo Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall'have (he
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associele to violele HIPAA and the Privacy.and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of euch response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10). business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection wilh the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed lo in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses end disclosures of such PHI. to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasiblo, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PH). if Covarad Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Cowered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllnatlona of Covered Entity

8. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or DrTtitalion(5) in its
Notice of Privacy PracUces-provided to individuals in accordance with aS CFR'Section
164.620. to the extenithal such change or llmitaiion. may affect Business Associate's
us« or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall prornptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocelion
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used oi

•  disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 154.500.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of afiy restrictions on the use or
discfosure of PHI thai Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance writh 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriciion may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of'
PHi,

|S) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement tha Covered Entity may immediately terminate the.-Agreement upon Covered ,
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of (he Business Associate

•  Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminaie the Agreement or provide an opportunity tor Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe specified by Covered Entity.. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to (he Secretary.

(6) MIsceiianeoua

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenmse defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as mose terms in the Pr'wacy and Security Rule, emended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as emended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as, in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity end Busiriess Associate agree lo take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate taw.

c. . Data Ownership. The Business Associale ecknowledges that it has no ownersh'ip rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d., interoretatiop. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with MIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seofwaiiop If afly iarm or condlUon of this Exhibit I or Ihe appllution thereof to any
periofi(s) or cireumttenpe it held (nvaild, such invalidity thatl not sftect other terms or
conditions which can be given effecl wldwih the Invello term or condllienjo this ertd (he
terms end conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared severable.

Sufvtval. Provlslorts In this Exhibit I reotrdlng the use end ditdoeure o( PHI. return or
doslfuoilon of PHI. exlenslone of (no protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. (he
detenaa and IndomnlllcatJon provisions of section (3).e and Paragraph 13 of (he
slanderd terms and condillons (P-37). shall survive the (ermmesOn of the Agreemcftl.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed iWs Exhibit I.

Oepartwenl of Heann and Human Servtcas

The Siete'

;C
-  •

SIgnalure'pf Authortzed Representative

Name OUuthorlzod Representative

Title of Authorized Represehlative

Date

lanmMhe Contractoi /.

RepresentalNe

of Authorized REpresenlativeof Authorized

TiUe ol Authorized Representative

Dale

vnu CiUftfll
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CERTIFICATION REQAROINO TH£ FEDERAL FUNDtNG ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
fCT (FFATAICOMPLIANCe

The FedefBl funding Aeceuniebility end Tfensperency Aci {FFATA) »oquiree prime 'awardeei of indlviflual
Faderel gmnti eguol to or greater than S25.000 and swarded on or efler October 1.2010. to report on
deta reieled to executrve compenaetion and aswcisted lirtl-iier lub^rants ol S2S,000 or more. II ihe
inlliel ewerd Is below |2S,000 but subsequent gram modificeiions result In e total award equal to or over
S2S.000. the award is eubjeet lo the FFATA reporting requirements, as ol the date o' the sward,
irt eccoreence wim 2 CFR Rart 170 (Reporting Subsward end Executive Compentelior^ Information), the
Depaitment of Health artd Humen Servkei (OHMS) must report the following inlormal>on for any
■ubeward or contract owerd lubject to the FFATA reporting tequirernants;
1. Nsmeorewrty
2. AmourM of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS code fo' contracls / CFOA program number for grents
5. Program source.
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of Ihe funding action
7. Localion of ihe enllly
e. Prtrtciple place of perfaimance
9. Unique identifier of Ihe entity (OUNS P)
10. Total compensation end names ol the lop five exec^ives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from (tie Federal gcvernment. andlhoie
reveriues ere greater than S25M enhually end

10.2. Compansalion Information is not alreadyaveiiebie through reporting to the SEC.

Prime greni recipients musi submit FFATA required data by the end ol the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor identrfted in Section 1.3 ot Ihe General Provisions egreea to comply with the provisions Of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transpatancy Act. Public Lew 109-282 end Public Law ll0-2$2.
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compenselion (nformelion), end runhef agrees
10 tkove the Conlrecl^e rapreionisiivo. asidentinedin Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of Ihe General Provisions
execute Ihe foUowing Ceilificalion:
The below named Contractor agrees i.o provide needed information as outtined above lo the NH
Department of Heailh and Human Sei^ces and lo comply with at) applicable provisions of Ihe Federal
Flnencial Accouniabiilly and Transparency Act.

Cenlracior Name:

Dele Name: /w>
Title:

EtfVMJ-Cenjl^UwReciRnmiUwFsOvilFwndlne Canl/saat MSHs
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A* iheContfBCtOf Wentifiad in Section 1.3 of me Oenofei Proviiione, I certify that the lesponjes to the
below fitted Quettioni are true end eccurela.

1. Thn r' yniir hmlfv l«- ^^9 9^0C00
7  In vooc butineti or organiieiior*'# preceOiog compieled fitcel yoer, did yoor business or orgennetion

rocfltve fl) 80 percettt or more of your er^nual gross revenue in U.S. federel^tracls. subcoriUacls,
loans omnls, sut«rent8, end/or coopereiive aflreemenu: end (2) 828,000.000 or more m annual
gross'revenues Irom U.S. federal wnltects. subeoniroels. toe'ns. grcnii. subflronls.andror
eoopwall^ agieemsnls?

V  NO YES

If the answer to U2 above is NO. stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the foitowing:

3 Does the puWic have eccess to Informaf'ton about the compenseiion of the execoUves In your
business or organljaiion through periodic reports filed urrder section 13(e) or i S(0) ol the Securtdes
Exchange Act ol 1934 (15 U.S.C.7Bm(e). 78o<d)) or «««ion 6104 ol Ihe Internal Pevcnwe Code ol
19867

NO YES

If Ihe answer to *3 above is YES. slop here

if the answer to 03 above is NO. pleose onswer Ihe following:

4. The names and compensation ol Ihe five most highly compensated olficora in your botinesa or
organization ere as follows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name;,

Name:.

Natrte:,

Amount:,

'Amoimt:.

Amount:,
r

Amount:.

Amount:.

ouxtvonwis
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DHHS information Security Requiremenle

A. DefinUions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning ir> this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unouihorlzed acquisition, unauthorized access, or any simitar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
autnortzed purpose nave access or poier>tial access lo personalty loentlflabie
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Healih
Information. * Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164:402 Of Title 4S, Code of Federal Reguiaiions.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incidenr in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-6t. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Inslllute of Standards aiwJ Technology. U.S. Oepa/tmem'
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all conridentlai information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance beneras and personal informatloit Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protecled Health Information and
Personalty Idenlifiabie Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all informalton owned or managed by
the Stale of NH.- created, received from or on behalf of the Depadmenl of Healih and
Human Services (DHHS) or eccessed In ihe course of performing conlracted
services : of which coliaction, disclosure, protection, and disposiiion is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protecled Health information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial
Informalion (PFI). Federal Tai Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card industry (PCt), and or other sensitive and corfridentlat information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that rece'ves
OHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA'nieansthe Health Insurance Portability end Accounlabilily Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

' 6. 'Incident' means an act that polenlialty violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes atiempis (either failed or successful) lo gain unauthorized access ^
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
e system lor the processing or storage oi data; and changes lo system hardware,
Tirmware, or software characteristics without the owner's Irnowtedge, instruction, or
consent, incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroutir\g of physical or electronic
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mall, ai) of which may have the potenUal to ̂  the data at risk of unaulhorized
access, use. disclosure. rrtodiTicaiion or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* mear^s any neNn}rk or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegaie a» a 'protected network (deslgrtcd, tested, and
approved, by means of tha State, to transmit; will be coritldared an open
network and not adequately secure lor the transmission of urtencrypled PI. PFi.
PHI orconridaniial DHHS data.

6. 'Personal Information* (or 'PI'} means information vvtiich can be used to dislingulsh
or trace an individuals identity, such as iner name, social security number, persona!
iniormallon as defined in New Hampshire-RSA 3S9-C:19. b'omelric records, etc..
alone, or when comtkned with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked

■  or linkat>te to a specific individual, such as date and ̂ ace ot birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

-  9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identiriable Health
Information at <5 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Oepartmeni of Health end Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PW) has the same meaning as provided in the
defrniiion of "Protected Health information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 46 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. '^curity Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information at 4$ C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Informaiion' means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology slendafd that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing'organlzaiion that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSlBILiriES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. 8uslhess Use and Disclosure ol Confidential Information.

V The Contreclor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Informelion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to ell its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, ma'ntab or transmit PHI 'in any manner that would consliluta a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

' 2. The Conliactor must not disclose any Confidenlial .Information in' response to. a

V« t.»ilupatloO«.e4.JOie EtfiWlK ConU^dwWltatJ
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requesi (or disclosure on the basis thai ii is required by law. In response lo a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS r>as an opportursity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. II DHHS notifies ttie Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at»ve Ihose uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to ttie Rrtvacy eno Securtty Rule, tne Coruiector must be bound by such
addilionei resirietiont and must not disclose PHI in vioistion of sucn edditienel
restrictions and must obids by any eddilional securrty safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees thai DHHS Data or derivatrve there from disclosed lo an End
User must only be used pursuanl to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agraas' DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may rwl be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in (his Contrecl.

6. The Coniracior agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS lor the purpose of inspecUng to confirm compliance with the terms Of this

• Conlracl.

fflETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. H End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between appiicatlorts, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and thai said,
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks end Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, es e method of Iransmilting DHHS
d.Bia.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email-to transmit Conlideniial Data if
email is encrvoled and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such informalion.

4. Encrypted Web Site. il End User is employing the Web lo transmit Confidential-
Data. the secure socl^et layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such es Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End .User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerfrffed ground
mall within the continental U.S. end when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices musi be encrypted end password-protected.'

'8'. Open Wireless Networks. End User may noi transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless naiwortt. End User must employ a virtual privBte network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an oper) wireless network.

0, Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or tronsmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must l)e
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop Irom whict> information win be
transmitted or accessed.

•  10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. H
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential.Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disdosura of
Information. SFTP folders and suMokJers used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded fot 24.hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Corrfideniial Oaia will be deleted every 24
ttoufs).

•  11. Wireless Devices, if Ertd User is transmitting Confldenlia] Data via wireless devices, ell
data rrust be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of informaiion.

III. RETENTION AND OlSPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the dale end any derivative of the deia for the duration of this
Contract. After audi time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data .er*d-any.
derivative. In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Conlract. To this end, the parties must

A. Retention

1.' The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected lf>
connection with the services rendered under this Conlract outside of Ihe United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall.also apply in ihe'impiemeniation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and iQpiudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations, ^

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impaci. Stale of NH systems
andfor Department confidential information tor contractor provided systems.

. 3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Informatior^.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant sotuiion end comply with ell applicable statutes end
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported end hardened operating systems.. Ihe latest anti viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anii-maiware utiiilies. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive iniruslon-dciectioo and lirewan protection.

6  The Contractor agrees to and ensures its eompleia cooperation with the Slate's
Chief inlorrnatiofi Officer in the detection of any security vulnerebifty of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1  If the Contractor will mainiein any Confidential information on its systeiTu>(or Its
Bulj-conlfBCtor systems), the Conlractoi will malntairi a documented process for
securely disposing- of such daia upon request or contract termination; and win
oblain written certification for any Slate of New Hampshire dete destroyed by the
Conlrecfor or any subcontractors es a part of ongoing, emergency, and of disaster
recovery'operalions. When no longer in.use. electrortic media containing Stale of
New Hampshire data" shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program'
in accordance wth industry-eccepied standards lor secure deletion and media
sanitixalion. or otherwise physicaiiy destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NiST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
"for Media Sanil'izalion. National inslllule of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will documerit and certify in writing at
time of the date deslruclion. and win provide wiiiten certification to the Oepartmeni
, upon request. The written certification will include ell'details necessBfy to
' demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

fegulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be Jointly
evaluated by the Sfale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise speafied, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Coniracti Conireclof agrees to comptetely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Conlraclor agrees to eeleguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, end any
derivative data or fites. as follows:

1, The Contractor win maintain proper security controls to proieci Oepartmeni
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Conlractof will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential informelion ihioughout the Information Wecycle. where epplicable. (from
erealion, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless, of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disli. paper, etc.).
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3. The Conirscior will maintain appropriate authentication and access conirots to
contractor eyslems that coiled, transmit, or store Department confidenllei information
where applicable.

4. The Contreclor win ensure proper security moniiorlrtg capabilities ere Irt place to
detect poieniial security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/er
Department conftdeniial information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor win-provide repviar security awareness end educeiion for lis End
Users In support of protecting Depailmeril confidential infoimaiion.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contradirtg any core functions of the engagement
'  supporting ihe services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

program of an internal process or processes that deftnes speciftc security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at.a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach nolificalion requirements.

7. The Conlrscfor will work wilh the Department to sign end comply with all applicable
Slate of New Hampshire end Oepartmenl system access and authorization policies
end procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Oepartmenl systemfs). Agreements will be
corripleted and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being auihorlzed.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 4S
CfR 180.103, the Contrador will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Depailmeni and is responsible for maintaining compliance wilh the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Depariment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and .
Conlrector to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life ol the Conirsctor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Conlrector. or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope ol the engagement between the Oepartmenl and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stele of New Hampishire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from zhe Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

IV Data Security Breach t.labtlity. In the event of any security breach Conlrector shall
make etforis to Investigate the causes of ihe breach, promptly take meesures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the*breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Coniracior all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including bui not limiied to; credit monitoring ssrvices. mailing costs and
costs sssociated with website and telephone call center services rtecesssry due to
the bresch.

12. Contreetor must, comply wtm all epplicaWe statutes and regulations regarding tne
Otivecy and security of Confidential Information, end must In ell other respects
maintain the privacy and security'of PI arid PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level end scope of requiremenis appticsbie to lederai sgencies, including,
but not llmUed to, pfovlslons of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § SS2a), OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §50^ HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C-F.R- Paris 160 end 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiabta heelth
information end ss applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, end
. physical safeguards to protect the conrideniiality of .(he Confidential Oaie and to
prevent oneulhorijed use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level end
scope of security that.is not less than the level and scope ol security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Depedmenl of information. Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/dolt/vendof/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement (nlormation relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to mainlatn a documented breech nolificetion end incident
response process. The Contractor win notify the Stale's Privacy OfTrcer, and
edditional email addresses provided in this section, of any security bresch within two
(2) hours Of the time lhat the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confrdenliel information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any Stele of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire netwofK,

15. Contractor must resirict access to the Conficlentiei Data obtained under this' -
Contract to only those aulhoriied End Users who need such OHMS Oats to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Idemified in this Contrect.

16. The Conlrector most ensure that ell End Users;

e. comply with such sategusrds es referenced in Section IV A, above.
Implemented to protect Confidential information that is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information si all times.

c. ensure thai laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHt. Pi, or
PFI ere encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only if cncrvoied and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized 1c
receive such information.
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e.. Imil disclosure ol tne Confidential Infonnation to (he eitent permitted by law.

1. Conndentiai Information received under this Contract end Individuelty
Idenliriobie data derived from DHHS Dale, (nutf be alored in en area Itkal Is
physically and lechnolooicaiiy secure from access by unaulhorlsed persons
during duty hours as well es rton-duty hours (e.g.. door tocks. card keys,
biometricidsnllfiais. etc.]-

g. onty authorized End Users may trartsmit the Confldemidl Data, including any
derivative rues-containing personally Idenlirable information, a^^d In all cases.
Svch data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable med>a as required in section iv above.

h. in all. other insiances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriaie 'safeguards, as determined by a risk-based'
assessment of the circumstances )nvo^ed.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used lo access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of (heir End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conducl onsile inspections lo mon'itor compliance with this
Conlract. including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other eppticable laws and t-ederai regulations until such lime the Confidential Date
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

Vf. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer. Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security incidents and preaches within two (2) hours of tha
time that (he Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and.Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the egenc/s documented Incideni Handling and Breech Notification
procedures and in accordance wilh <2 C.F.R §§ 431.300 • 30S. In eddrtion lo. and '
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Coniraclor'a procedures must also address how the Contractor win:

'  1.. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents es required in this Exhibit or P-37:

. 4. Idehtrfy and converge a core response group to determine the risk level ol inddents
and determine tfsK-based responses to InckJenis: end
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S. Determine whether Breach noiitication is required, and. rf so, identify eppropriate
Breach notlTication methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any miiigallon
measures.

incidentft and/or Breaches that implicate Pi musi be addressed and reported, as
sppUcable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:30.

Vl! PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

OHHSlnformalionSecurityOfftce@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

OHHSPrlvacyOfftcer@dhhs.nh,gov

C, DHHS contact for Information Security Issues:

DHHSinformalionSecurltyOffice@dhh$.nh.gov

0. DHHS contact for Breech notfftcaiions;

'DHHStnformationSecurityOHice@dhhs.nh.gov

OHHSPrlvacy.OHicef@dhns.nh.gov
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